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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE"” AND “GEM”, RESPECTIVELY)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Icon Culture
Global Company Limited (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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RNEER (H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
8/F, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Innovax Capital Limited

Unit B, 13/F

Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong laws
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

As to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws
Hylands (Shenzhen) Law Firm

As to Cayman Islands laws
Ogier

REGISTERED OFFICE

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9009, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

29/F, Kingold Century

No. 62 Jinsui Road

Zhujiang New Town

Tianhe District, Guangzhou City
Guangdong Province, the PRC

4 Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report

B BED

B2E BRI SBT
RCEBTTEERBIEH) TH
R A B B B A BT

BEERR
EITE 105
KFRESE

BHRER

AR E AR AR
BE

BT TITIE 1285
AP |
131EBE

ERER

B EERE
BRNNBEMEBAAREZREEER

BEITEARLTIE ([ ])EE
EFER ORI AN ETE A

BRI SR B A

BN
A EE

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9009, Cayman Islands

hEFEE XM R

PRERE

F& N T K] [
BT Tk

IR 62557
BEBEREKNE291E



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F., 148 Electric Road
North Point, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9009, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE
http://www.iconspace.com/
LISTING INFORMATION
Place of Listing

GEM of the Stock Exchange
Stock Code

8500

Board Lot

2,000 Shares

Company Information (continued)

NEER (E)

BREITEERBE

HEA
BRIE 148583148

FRERERNBFETRRE

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited

89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman

KY1-9009, Cayman Islands

BERDBFERIRE

EERBAETLARAA
&A1 A

BRIE 14855211 2103BE
FTEFRIET

R EIERTT
B R IRTT

NGIEN
http://www.iconspace.com/
EwmEH

LrithE

B8 32 i GEM

R AR

8500

B

il

B

2,000 i% f% 17

2022 FFH RALXAIEBREEERAR


http://www.iconspace.com/
http://www.iconspace.com/

Financial Highlights
MBERE

2022 2021 Change
2022 F 2021 4 HE)
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
AR® TR ARBEFIT %
Revenue Was 68,969 175,360 (60.7)%
Gross (loss)/profit E(E518) = F (4,499) 30,568 <(100.0)%
(Loss)/profit for the year ZAN/NS 0
attributable to equity FE(EERN(EER) @
shareholders of
the Company (39,760) 4,871 <(100.0)%

Revenue for 2022 (RMB’000)
2022 FHHR(ARMET )

Public relations ("PR"),
marketing campaigns

Online media
advertising services

M EEEESRY and other services
4317 T~ NHEFE(DE]) -
6.3% EIHEE R E A RS

3,802
5.5%

Traditional offline media
advertising services
B T e
&R
60,850
88.2%

Revenue for 2021 (RMB'000)
2021 FRE(ARETFTT)

Online media PR, marketing
advertising services campaigns and
4 i 2 A ,7 i
.ﬁiﬁiﬁaﬁ: BR%% — Aothér er\\//wfes

. N BHED
17.8% R HoA fR 75
7,348
4.2%

Traditional offline media
advertising services
Biekr TR
B &R
136,856
78.0%
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MARKET REVIEW

During 2022, amid the influence of the complex and severe external
environment factors such as continuing international political
tensions, slowdown in economy growth, as well as spread of novel
coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19") domestically and the
weakening of macro markets in China, China’s economic and social
development generally remained stable, even though it was under
the “threefold pressure” of contraction in demand, supply shocks
and weak expectations. China’s annual GDP growth rate in 2022
was 3.0% according to the data of the National Bureau of Statistics.
At the same time, China’s economic development is resilient, the
macroeconomic is dynamic and confident, and there is a lot of
room for the adjustments for macroeconomic regulation and
controls. The economic development remains positive in the long-
term.

The advertising and marketing industry in China is facing a huge
challenge in 2022 with both investor confidence and the marketing
expenditure budget of companies declining. The COVID-19 has
become the black swan event of the year, with a long and profound
impact. In December 2022, Miaozhen Systems Marketing Academy
released research data showing that 74% of advertisers perceived a
downward trend in 2022 in the overall marketing investment as
compared to the previous year. The overall advertising market was
expected to decline by 9.2% in 2022. According to a research report
by CCTV Market Research (CTR), except for the elevator media,
advertisement spending on traditional advertising media platforms
(including TV, traditional outdoor, cinema video, etc.) saw a drop of
different degrees. Advertisers’ marketing objectives continue to be
tilted towards “performance effectiveness”, with the overall
proportion of advertisers spending on brand awareness promotion
and performance effectiveness of 47% and 53%, respectively.
Performance-based advertising refers to marketing methods with
measurable return on investment and quantifiable sales
contribution with the main purpose of boosting sales, such as
traffics-improvement service for live-streaming E-commerce
marketing services, promoting stock in live-streaming and social
media “seeding”. The spending proportion of new brand advertisers
and small to medium-scale advertisers on performance-based
advertising has been higher. In 2022, China’s live-streaming
E-commerce industry still show tremendous growth momentum. In
terms of overall market size, gross merchandise value (“GMV") will
be about RMB3.5 trillion in 2022, with an annual growth rate of 53%.
Compared with the triple-digit growth rates of previous years, the
overall development of live-streaming E-commerce tends to level
off and move towards a high-quality development path forward.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated multimedia advertising and marketing
solutions service provider based in Guangzhou, the PRC, providing
advertising and marketing solutions to our customers. Services we
provide include: (i) traditional offline media, including Out-of-home
("OOH") and indoor advertising platforms; (ii) online media; and (iii)
public relations, marketing campaigns and other services. Our
integrated multi-media advertising and marketing solutions
services focus on developing advertising strategies, identifying and
sourcing the most appropriate advertising resources and methods,
and providing integrated marketing services to maximize the
awareness of our clients’ brands, as well as to promote sales
performance for our clients’ products.

The year of 2022 was full of challenges. With the overall economy
slowed down and the general social environment filled with
uncertainties, the Group’s operation was adversely impacted. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded revenue of approximately RMB69.0 million, representing a
decrease of 60.7% as compared to that of last year. A net loss of
approximately RMB39.8 million was recorded during the Year (2021:
net profit of approximately RMB4.9 million). The net loss was mainly
attributable to: (i) the decrease in service revenue from traditional
offline media advertising with higher gross profit margin during the
Year, in particular, certain major customers significantly reduced
their advertising budget in traditional offline media due to the
impact of COVID-19 in the PRC; (ii) the Group adopted a more
cautious approach and increased provision of credit loss allowance
as the Group expects slow collection in trade receivables; and (iii) as
the Group continued to build up and maintain its service
capabilities in live-streaming E-commerce business, the operation
costs increased correspondingly.
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In the face of the impact of the industry, such as the tilting of
customers’ marketing budgets towards performance-based
advertising and the adverse impact of traditional media advertising
and marketing services, the Group has firmly transited and
continued to step into the Internet and other new form of
marketing services business. We are committed to providing our
customers with a complete closed-loop service from “new
customer acquisition” — “seeding” — “sales conversion” —
“retention” — “repurchase”. During the Year, the Group mainly took
the following actions:

1. Interms of live-streaming marketing services, the Group's live
E-commerce team has accumulated more than 400 live
broadcasting hours and produced more than 1,500 short
videos during the Year. We have successfully expanded the
number of brand customers with enterprise scale of more
than RMB10 billion, contracted and provided services to them.
Among those brand customers, the Group has built up a live-
streaming room for promoting a well-known fresh food
brand’s new pre-made dishes product and successfully
achieved the monthly GMV of RMB1 million during the Year,
and quickly helped this customer in establishing and
consolidating its new sales channel in Douyin. With this
successful case, the Group won “Golden Prize for Innovation
Marketing Category” by the Creative Awards Innovation 2022.
The team has formed its own unique methodology of live-
streaming E-commerce operations such as customer
screening, best-seller product selection and live-streaming
room tactics in the process of service providing, which has
laid a solid foundation for the Group to execute more live-
streaming E-commerce operation business in the future.

Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (E)

In terms of new media operation services, the Group has set
up an exclusive new media operation service team in the
second half of 2022 through staff optimization and structural
reorganization, and provided new media operation services
to a number of brand customers on new media platforms
such as Xiaohongshu and Douyin. Services provided include
cross-border IP (i.e. intellectual property) marketing services,
live E-commerce operation and new media marketing for a
number of well-known brands, covering industries such as
medical and health, daily chemical and household cleaning.
We have successfully created several industry showcases and
won several awards in ADMEN Awards and ROI Festival during
the Year.

The Group continues to explore new profit models. On one
hand, seeing the booming trend of live-streaming
E-commerce, the Group has boldly “tested the waters” by
creating a self-operated account for promoting pre-made
dishes which is operated by its own team, building live-
streaming business together with its brand customers, and
trying out various profit models by way of profit sharing with
the customers. On the other hand, the Group also tried to
create and operate a number of seeding accounts in
Xiaohongshu, which the Group sees as a new source of
income in the near future. Although in the short term, the
business volume of online media advertising services such as
live-streaming E-commerce and new media operation is still
relatively low as compared to the traditional offline media
advertising services, the Group believes that through the
exploration of new profit models and the accumulation of
experience from successful cases, the “seed” will definitely
grow and become a new driver for the Group’s revenue and
profit growth in the future.

At the same time, the Group continued to consolidate and
develop its traditional offline media advertising business, and
provided value-added services such as placement
effectiveness evaluation report, data analysis report and new
advertisement designs to minimize the impact of the decline
in traditional offline media advertising business on the Group.
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During the Year, the Group was awarded the honorary title of
“South China E-commerce Gold Label Award — Most Growing
Enterprise Award” jointly issued by Guangzhou Municipal
Commerce Bureau and Guangzhou Electronic Commerce Industry
Association, and also elected as Guangzhou Tianhe District Folk
Artists Association (Vice President Company), Vice President
Company of Guangzhou E-commerce Industry Association and
member of Guangdong Modern Service Federation.

PROSPECTS

Based on China’s macro economy in 2022, we can see the customer
consumption is affected by the impact of the COVID-19
significantly. It is expected that the macro economy will rebound
after the relaxation on COVID-19 prevention and control policy, but
there are still some uncertainties and the recovery of domestic
consumption demand is still under pressure. 2023 is the opening
year of the implementation of the strategic plans of the 20th Party
Congress, and it is also a critical year after the COVID-19 prevention
and control policy is relaxed. With the gradual release of a package
of policies to stabilize the economy, and the enhancement of new
economic growth momentum, the Group is cautiously optimistic
about China’s economy in 2023, with market demand expected to
remain sluggish in the first half of 2023, but gradually increase in
the second half of the 2023, and the annual economic growth rate
is expected to return to the potential growth rate.

According to the projections of the Miaozhen Systems Marketing
Academy, marketing expenditures of brand companies are
expected to recover in 2023, with an expected growth rate of 16%
for total marketing investment by brand customers. Mobile Internet
advertising continue to be the main trend of marketing, and 70% of
advertisers will choose to increase their expenditures on mobile
Internet advertising, which includes advertisings on social media,
video advertising and live-streaming advertising.

Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (E)

In 2023, the Group plans to take the following actions: 20234 - AEBEFERBIUTHEEREZR
7% -

We will focus on exploring potential business opportunities
with existing customers and stabilize and expand our
business relationship with key clients (i.e. clients with contract
amount over RMB1 million). Take the successful showcases as
an entry point to step up beyond the existing service scope,
so as to realize the business expansion by way of from raise
brand awareness to promote sales performance, from creative
marketing idea to create smart product idea, and merge
online media services to offline media service. At the same
time, we will continue to develop live E-commerce clients,
form a second brand tier, and provide continuous
momentum for business development.

In terms of traditional media, the Group's exclusive advertising
resources, Shenzhen Futian Transportation Hub, is expected
to see a significant increase in traffic after the reopen of
border between Hong Kong and Mainland China on 6
February 2023. Following this trend and taking advantage of
completion of advertisement placement facilities upgrade in
2022, we will expand the advertising business at Shenzhen
Futian Transportation Hub in full swing as well as advertising
services in other high-speed rail hubs. Meanwhile, community
media, represented by elevator media, is expected to
continue to be the main growth force of outdoor advertising.
We have taken action in advance and reached out to new
elevator media owners to form new strategic partnerships, so
as to provide brand customers with quality media placement
services with wider coverage and more favorable prices.

Live-streaming E-commerce will enter the era of “content is
king”, using the combination of short video and live-
streaming to attract more traffic and promote sales
conversion. The Group will increase its investment in short
video production and produce more instant, knowledgeable,
interesting and emotionally resonant video content to drive
traffic of live rooms to achieve better sales and promote
brand awareness at the same time. In addition, the Group has
also planned to try out multi-platform live-streaming
E-commerce business to match the characteristics of different
brands and products, and make full use of the benefits of the
policies adopted in each mainstream E-commerce channel
to obtain better brand promotion efficiency and sales
performance.
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4. New media marketing services have become another
important service product of the Group. In 2023, we will
continue to enhance our competitiveness in new media
integrated creativity by providing various services such as
Xiaohongshu seeding, Douyin content marketing, crossover
cooperation with different brands and IPs and event
marketing. On the one hand, we will continue to optimize
and expand our media resource base, and try to form strategic
cooperation with web influencers in each category to obtain
higher service profits through more favorable purchase prices;
on the other hand, we will continue to consolidate and
expand the influence of our self-operated account matrix to
promote to more customers and further expand our business
track.

The year 2023 is still expected to be a challenging year for the
Group, but the Group is well-prepared to formulate a clear business
strategy, adjust the team structure, further cut costs and to achieve
product differentiation through innovation, improve efficiency and
reduce costs, to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow to
support the sustainable development of the business and strive to
provide quality marketing services to customers for a synthesis of
“brands awareness, marketing effectiveness and sales volume
achievement”.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to strive to provide
comprehensive marketing solutions to our customers and adopt a
prudent and proactive business approach in the hope of
generating satisfactory returns and profits for the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”). | would like to take this
opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all Shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust and support, and to
the directors, management and all staffs for their loyal service and
dedication.

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To
Chairman
29 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
During the Year, the Group's revenue amounted to RMB69.0

millions, representing a decrease of 60.7% (2021: RMB175.4 million).
Revenue disaggregated by major service lines is set as below:

g JEI)
iy 28

RAFE  AEEMWEERS AR 690
BE T W Le07%(2021F : AR ¥
17548 87) - Wi E BIRBZH D5
A

As percentage to
total revenue
ERBENEDL
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021
20225 2001 & 20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000 % % %
ARETR AR
Traditional offline media advertising 244 T~ 188 & & R 75
services 60,850 136,856 -55.5 88.2 780
Online media advertising services 48 - 82 4 IR 7% 4,317 31,156 -86.1 6.3 17.8
PR, marketing campaigns and NH - EHERREM
other services R 3,802 7,348 -483 55 42
Total Bt 68,969 175,360 -60.7 100.0 1000
Traditional offline media advertising B T IHEES

The Group's traditional offline media advertising services include
the provision of advertising service in public transportation station
and hubs (including airports, high speed railways, subways and
buses, etc.), flat panels and LCD/LED displays in shopping malls,
commercial buildings and housing estates.

As the development of macro-economic slowed down and partial
lockdowns and quarantines happened nationwide frequently, a
majority of brand customers cut their marketing budget during the
Year. Resulted from the industry headwind, several major customers
of the Group which were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic had
substantially reduced their traditional offline media advertising
budget. Revenue from traditional offline media advertising services
decreased by 55.5% to approximately RMB60.9 million as compared
to 2021.
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Online media advertising services

Revenue from online media advertising services in 2021 mainly
comprised revenue from advertising-placing services on various
online platforms, while revenue from this segment mainly
comprised revenue from live-streaming E-commerce service and
social media seeding services during the Year.

During the Year, revenue from online media advertising services
decreased by RMB26.8 million to RMB4.3 million, representing a
decrease by 86.1% as compared to the year of 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to one of the major customers adjusted its online
advertising strategy and decreased the online-TV advertising
placing volume, resulting the revenue from online media
advertising services decreased by RMB26.5 million from that
customer.

In line with the trend of the marketing and advertising industry,
exploration of the business potential in online media advertising
services has always been the major focus of the Group. During the
Year, the Group successfully extended services to several renowned
brand customers and stepped up to deliver live-streaming
E-commerce service and social media seeding services, recording a
revenue of more than RMB4.1 million. With the expansion of the
dedicated service team in live-streaming E-commerce operations
and social media “seeding” services, the Group expects a further
development in the comprehensive marketing services for online
media advertising service segment.

PR, marketing campaigns and other services

The lockdowns and quarantines associated with COVID-19 casted
lots of uncertainties and challenges to the launch of offline PR and
marketing campaigns. A lot of offline marketing campaigns were
postponed or cancelled as a result. Revenue in this segment
decreased by RMB3.5 million from RMB7.3 million in 2021 to RMB3.8
million in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWEAD AT ()

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the Year amounted to approximately RMB73.5
million (2021: RMB144.8 million). The decrease was mainly resulted
from the reduced media costs from the decreased advertising
services delivered. The decrease was partially offset by the increase
in staff costs, short-video production costs and the rental costs from
the operation of live-streaming E-commerce.

Gross (loss)/profit and gross (loss)/profit margin

Gross loss amounted to approximately RMB4.5 million for the Year
(2021: gross profit of RMB30.6 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the: (i) decrease in the revenue generated from traditional
offline media advertising services which has higher profit margin as
some of the customers who were affected by the COVID-19
pandemic had substantially reduced their traditional offline media
advertising budget; and (ii) increase in staff costs, short-video
production costs and rental expense as the Group continued to
expand the service capabilities for live-streaming E-commerce
business since the fourth quarter of 2021. Gross loss margin
amounted to approximately 6.5% for the Year (2021: gross profit
margin of 17.4%).

Other revenue

Other revenue amounted to approximately RMB0.7 million for the
Year (2021: RMB3.6 million). Other revenue for the Year mainly
consisted of additional value-added tax deductions of
approximately RMBO.5 million (2021: RMB1.3 million). In 2021, the
Group received a one-off government incentive of approximately
RMB2.0 million, and no such event incurred during the Year.

Selling expenses
Selling expenses amounted to approximately RMB4.2 million for

the Year (2021: RMB10.3 million). The decrease was mainly due to
the reduction in purchase of marketing data analysis services.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB37.6 million (2021: RMB15.8 million). The increase in
administrative expenses for the Year was mainly due to the
increased credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The Group
recognised credit loss allowance for trade receivables with slow
collection of approximately RMB26.7 million for the Year (2021:
approximately RMB3.7 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately RMB0.9 million for the
Year (2021: RMB0.4 million). The finance costs mainly comprised of
interest expense for the Group's short-term bank loan of
approximately RMBO0.4 million (2021: Nil) and interest expense
recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16
Leases of approximately RMBO.5 million (2021: RMB0.4 million).

Income tax

The Group recorded income tax benefit of approximately RMB6.8
million for the Year (2021: tax expense of approximately RMB2.7
million). The income tax benefit was mainly a result of the deferred
tax asset recognised during the Year arising from the credit loss
allowance. The Group did not recognized deferred tax asset from
the cumulative tax loss of RMB18.0 million until which would be
utilised against future taxable profit, if any, within the coming five
years.

(Loss)/Profit for the Year attributable to equity
Shareholders of the Company

During the Year, the Group recorded loss for the year attributable
to equity Shareholders of the Company of RMB39.8 million (2021:
net profit of RMB4.9 million). The decrease was mainly because the
Group recorded a gross loss and the administrative expenses had
increased resulting from increased credit loss allowance for trade
receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEEWEAD AT ()

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital and other capital requirements were
principally satisfied by cash generated from the Group’s operations
and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RMB57.7 million (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB105.5 million), and its liquidity as represented by
current ratio (calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities) was 1.9 times at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December
2021: 2.4 times). Cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB12.0 million (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB12.3 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding bank loans
with fixed interest rate of RMB20.0 million (as at 31 December 2021:
nil). Therefore, gearing ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing
bank loans by total equity, was 27.6% (as at 31 December 2021: not
applicable).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There has been no changes in the capital structure of the Group
during the Year. The share capital of the Company only comprises

of ordinary shares.

As at the date of this report, the Company had 180,000,000 shares
(the “Shares”) in issue.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged accounts receivable
with carrying amount of RMB31.2 million (2021: nil) to secure
RMB10.0 million of bank borrowings of the Group. Save for the
above, the Group did not have any charges on its assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

Individual companies within the Group has limited foreign currency
risk as most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations in which they
relate. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and capital assets during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group currently has no other plan for material investments and
capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWED A (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and review.
The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with
any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and compare the level of
risk against predetermined acceptable level of risk. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss
scenarios. Incidents and other situations involving loss or near-loss
will be investigated and properly documented as part of the effort
to manage risks.

Exposure to business risk arises in the normal course of the Group's
business, the business risk the Group may encounter had been
described below:

() the Group may not be able to retain or renew the existing
supply of advertising resources or obtain new advertising
resources for the customers, which may lead to loss of

customers and businesses;

(i) the expansion from traditional advertising to online
advertising may face tremendous competition;

(i) the customers may delay the settlement of the accounts
receivable, which may result in a certain credit risk;

(iv) the customers may decrease its advertising budget due to
the economy slow-down; and

(v)  the resignation of key persons.
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DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2021: nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The Shares were initially listed on GEM by way of share offer and
the Company completed the share offer of its 45,000,000 Shares,
comprising 4,500,000 public offer Shares and 40,500,000 placing
Shares, with a par value of HK$0.01 each at an offer price of HK$1.39
per Share. The net proceeds from the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”)
after deducting the underwriting commission and related listing
expenses paid by the Company, were approximately HK$30.6
million. Having considered the business operating environment
and the development of the Group, the Board resolved to change
the use of the unutilised Net Proceeds as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 September 2020 (the
“Announcement’). Please refer to the Announcement for details
of the changes on use of the unutilised Net Proceeds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWED T ()

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the use and the status

TxREHN2022F 12 A31 BB HREF

of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2022: 2B S BA AN N AR
Remaining
Revised balance of
allocation of unutilised Expected
Original ~ NetProceeds Amount  Net Proceeds timeline to
intended  (asdisclosed utilised up to asat  useunutilised
use of Net inthe  31December  31December  NetProceeds
Proceeds Announcement) 2022 2022 (Note 4)
H2022%
FrEsE 128318 RAXBA
Frig R REMBT  ER20nf BRAKE FEREER
RENRL A (F 12A318 RERE BB
BRERE  DERRE) EBHALHE AN (f7t4)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn ThEL ThEL THEr TEL

Increase coverage of our exclusive OOH — BBEMEBINE RIAEA 16722 14504 14504 - Notapplicable
and online advertising resources by AMNEEFIRBLES TEHA
acquiring additional resources (Note 1) BERNBEEEE ()

Expand our business coverage in BAAFNERSEEZERD 8,882 - Notapplicable ~ Notapplicable ~ Not applicable
growing regions and spectrums of HEREAFRERENEE TR TER TER
service offerings

Enhance the big data platforms (Note )~ BARMMAEET & (H:72) 1,960 2960 2960 - Notapplicable

TER

General working capital ~REEES 3063 3063 3063 - Notapplicable

TER

Prepayment and/or deposit of online BLESERNERFUR - 10010 10010 - Notapplicable

advertising resources (Note 3) &/ Sk (H#3) TEm
30627 30627 30627 -
Notes: Htat -

The Group has entered into agreements with suppliers for additional
exclusive OOH and online advertising resources.

The Group has entered into agreements with strategic partners and
purchased data to continue revamping the big data platforms and
experience enhancement of big data. The Group's optimized big
data platform has been under trial operation. Related training has
been provided to the staff to improve our customer services.

The Group has made prepayment and/or deposit on advertising
resources to enhance its ability to meet customer’s online advertising
needs and achieve the goal of continuous business growth.

As at 31 December 2022, the Net Proceeds were fully utilised
according to the intentions previously disclosed.
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MEASURES TAKEN IN RESPONSE TO THE IMPACT OF
THE COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak to the developments on the Group’s business and has put
in place contingency measures.

These contingency measures include:

1 Properly arrange employees to cooperate with government
guidelines to take preventive measures. Reduce unnecessary
business travel plans and unnecessary costs and expenses;
Adopt remote work-from-home policy for employees whose
attendance are affected by the government’s pandemic
prevention measures to ensure that the Company’s business
is not affected;

2 Communicate with the Group’s clients to adjust the
placement plans according to the clients’ needs; and

3 Actively develop client’s need on the online advertisement,
and increase the revenue amount and proportionate of online
advertisements.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENESNEEERESR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (A F3&) ("Mr. Chow"), aged 41, is an
executive Director, founder and chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman’). He joined the Group in June 2009 and is mainly
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business direction
of the Group. He was appointed as a Director on 24 April 2019 and
re-designated as an executive Director and Chairman on 31 May
2019. He is currently a director of Guangzhou Icon Culture Media
Investment Co., Ltd.* (BM XL XALEEHIEE B R A F]) (“Icon
Media").

Mr. Chow has over 16 years of experience in the media industry.
From July 2006 to May 2009, he served as the executive director of
Australian New Express Daily* CEM¥TR#R), where he was
responsible for formulation and implementation of operational and
investment plans of the company. In January 2010, he joined
KINGOLD Group Co,, Ltd* ((EEEEHBR 2 F]) ('KINGOLD"),
which was a majority-controlled company (within the meaning of
the GEM Listing Rules) of Mr. Chau Chak Wing (JB/Z28) ("Mr.
Chau"), father of Mr. Chow, and he served as the vice president of
the real estate department where he fully participated in planning,
design and management. In May 2014, Mr. Chow was promoted to
director and chief executive officer of KINGOLD, where he was
responsible for the overall strategic planning, business direction
and management of the operations of KINGOLD. With effect from
17 February 2023, Mr. Chow was appointed as a director of
Guangdong Huaxing Bank Co,, Ltd..

Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor's degree of design in interior and
spatial design from the University of Technology Sydney, Australia
in March 2011.

Mr. Chow is a controlling Shareholder as prescribed by the GEM
Listing Rules of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholder”), as
well as a director and the sole shareholder of Shining Icon (BVI)
Limited (“Shining Icon”) and Sense One Limited ("Sense One”"),
both of which are our Controlling Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Chow has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have

been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan (22B2H), aged 45, is an executive Director. She
joined the Group in July 2016 and is mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning, business direction and management of
the operations of the Group. She was appointed as a Director on 31
May 2019 and re-designated as an executive Director on the same
day. She is currently a director of lcon Media.

Ms. Cai has over 21 years of experience in the media industry.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cai served in certain managerial roles
in several private companies in the PRC. From June 2001 to March
2005, she served as general manager of the marketing department
of Guangdong New Express* (B R FTIRFRt), where she was
responsible for formulating business policies, marketing promotion
and business development. From February 2006 to January 2007,
she served as deputy general manager cum general manager of
the sales department of Guangdong Yaxin Broadcasting Co., Ltd.*
(BRI UEEEB R A F]), where she was mainly responsible
for its business operations and daily management. From February
2007 to December 2015, she was the senior vice president in the
sales department of Visionchina Media Group Co., Ltd.* (ZEAR {H1F
B ABR AT (previously known as \/isionchina Digital Mobile
Television Co, Ltd* CER B FTRHERABR A
company controlled by Visionchina Media Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: VISN) from December 2007 to April 2017,
where she was responsible for formulation and implementation of

), which was a

development strategies and sales management of the South China
regional markets.

Ms. Cai obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
South China University of Technology, the PRC in December 2016.

Ms. Cai is also the sole director and the sole shareholder of Focus
Wonder Limited (“Focus Wonder”), one of the substantial
Shareholders of the Group (as prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules).

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Cai has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESRGAEEEREER (H)

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek (ZI5B&), aged 40, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in July 2009 as general manager and
was promoted to director in July 2016. Mr. Lau is mainly responsible
for the overall daily operation and management of the Company,
including establishing the management system, designing the
development strategy and optimizing the organizational structure
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 31 May 2019
and re-designated as an executive Director on the same day. He is
currently a director of lcon Media.

Mr. Lau obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial design from
The University of New South Wales, Australia in May 2009.

Mr. Lau is also the sole director and the sole shareholder of Master
Connection Limited (“Master Connection”), one of the
Shareholders of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lau has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Liang Wei (%), aged 51, is an executive Director, chief
executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and the
compliance officer. She joined the Group in June 2017 and is mainly
responsible for the overall strategy implementation, business
development and management of the operations of the Group.
She was appointed as a Director on 31 May 2019 and re-designated
as an executive Director on the same day. She is currently a director
of lcon Media.

Ms. Liang has over 23 years of experience in business management.
From January 1992 to March 1996, she served as a programmer in
China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation 714 Institute* (| B4/
ETHEBRARE - —UIAFTFT), where she was responsible for
the construction and maintenance of the company’s database.
From October 1995 to December 2003, she worked at the strategic
marketing department of Yonyou Software Co,, Ltd* (FA /& B4
BB 7]). From April 2006 to October 2016, she served as the
senior vice president of Visionchina Media Group Co., Ltd.* (ZEt&/&
HEEHR AT (previously known as Visionchina Digital Mobile
Television Co., Ltd.* GEREFEHEHER GR A 7)), which was a
company controlled by Visionchina Media Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: VISN) and from December 2007 to April
2017, where she was responsible for the formulation of
development strategy, establishment of sales management system
and policies, market analysis, product promotion, and supervising
advertising sales activities in major sales region. From October 2016
to March 2017, she served as the vice president of Shanghai
Conservation Advertising Co., Ltd.* (E/8~FEEESBR AT,
where she was responsible for the formulation of project
management system and managing costs and revenue.

Ms. Liang obtained a master’s degree in international business
administration from the University of Northumbria at Newcastle,
United Kingdom in November 2005. She has obtained a
certification of specially invited jury of 2019 Creative International
Innovation Festival and jury of 2020 Effie Awards Greater China. Ms.
Liang was an awarded Person of the Year of E-marketing in the
iResearch Marketing Awards 2020.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Liang has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESRGAEEEREER (H)

Mr. Liu Biao (2I1E), aged 43, is an executive Director. He joined
the Group in July 2009 and is mainly responsible for the overall
business development and sales management of the Group. He
was appointed as a Director on 31 May 2019 and re-designated as
an executive Director on the same day. He is currently a director of
Icon Media.

Mr. Liu has 22 years of experience in sales and business
management in the media industry. From June 2000 to December
2006, he served as sales manager at Guangzhou Aishidai
Advertising Co., Ltd.* (BN X BERESBR A7), where his
duties were developing and implementing efficient sales network
and maintaining customer relationships. From August 2007 to
January 2008, he served as the planning manager at Ego
Information Technology Group Co., Ltd.* (B & 15 B R EE
BBR A 7]), where he was responsible for the planning, organisation
and implementation of marketing activities, product development,
analysing sales and market development.

Mr. Liu obtained his diploma in chain management from
Guangzhou Jinrong Specialist College* (M & @& £2P57), the
PRC in July 2004.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Liu has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster (Z=JK ), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is
responsible for supervising the Group’s compliance, corporate
governance matters and providing independent judgment and
advice to the Group.

Mr. Lee has more than 19 years of experience in the accounting and
finance industry. From September 2002 to June 2004, he worked as
an accountant at KPMG in Hong Kong and subsequently from July
2004 to June 2005, he worked as a senior accountant in the audit
and risk advisory service division at KPMG in Sydney, Australia. From
June 2005 to March 2011, he was the associate vice president of
structured finance at GE Capital. From April 2011 to May 2012, he
also served as the assistant vice president of syndicated finance at
the institutional banking group of DBS Bank Ltd in Hong Kong,
where he was responsible for the development of transaction
structure and assessment of loan distribution risk. From May 2012
to October 2017, he served as senior vice president, head of
syndicated finance department of China Minsheng Banking Corp,,
Ltd., where he was responsible for departmental management,
including business planning and recruitment of departmental staff.
From May 2016 to October 2017, he also served as the director of
Asia Pacific Loan Market Association Limited. From October 2017 to
April 2018, he was the vice president cum chief investment officer
of Carnival Group (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 996). From April 2018 to
September 2019, he has been serving as the managing director in
the financing department of Fortune Fountain Capital Limited,
where he was responsible for the group’s overseas equity and debt
financing business, formulating financial strategies. Since April 2020,
he has been serving as the senior director in the credit investment
& corporate finance department of GAW Capital Advisors Limited,
where he was responsible for provision of private credit in the real
estate market. Mr. Lee has been a certified practicing accountant
and a member of CPA Australia since September 2005. Since
December 2018, Mr. Lee has been a Type 1 (dealing in securities)
licensed representative and he has been licensed to carry on
regulated activities for Cachet Asset Management Limited from
September 2019 to January 2020. Since October 2020, Mr. Lee has
been licensed to carry on regulated activities for Gateway Capital
(Hong Kong) Limited.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESRGAEEEREER (H)

Mr. Lee obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 2002.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lee has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (:E£ 1), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. She is
responsible for supervising the Group’s compliance, corporate
governance matters and providing independent judgment and
advice to the Group.

Ms. Tam has nearly 28 years of experience in the accounting and
finance field. From August 1994 to October 1997, she was an
accountant at DraftWorldwide Ltd, where she was responsible for
managing financial matters. From October 1997 to May 1999, she
also worked as an accountant at Baker Norton Asia Ltd, where she
was mainly responsible for financial matters. From June 1999 to
November 2000, she was a senior accountant at World Pioneer Ltd,
where she was responsible for setting up the accounting system
and managing the accounting functions including preparation of
financial forecasts and management reports, and performing
analysis. From November 2000 to March 2001, she was the financial
accountant and subsequently from March 2001 to October 2003,
she served as the finance and administration manager at Infoserve
Technology Hong Kong Ltd, where she was responsible for the
management of finance, administration and human resources
matters. From August 2004 to March 2007, she was the finance
manager and subsequently the group finance manager at Heal
Force Development Limited, where she was responsible for
compliance and management of the group finance department.
From April 2007 to September 2013, she was the head of
compliance and corporate affairs of NetDragon Websoft (Hong
Kong) Limited and the company secretary and authorised
representative of NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited (previously
known as NetDragon Websoft Inc.), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0777). From October 2013
to February 2014, she was the vice president of management
centre of 91 Wireless Websoft Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Baidu Inc,, a company listed on NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: BIDU),
where she was responsible for supervising and managing the
finance, legal, human resources, internal control, government
relationship and administration departments. From September
2014 to March 2018, she was an independent non-executive
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

director and chairlady of the audit committee and member of the
nomination committee of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.,, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1527). On 8 November 2022, Ms. Tam
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
Meihao Medical Group Co,, Ltd (stock code: 1947), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Tam is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April
2002 and a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2006.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor's degree in business accounting from
University of Lincolnshire and Humberside, United Kingdom in April
2000, and a master's degree in educational counselling from The
Education University of Hong Kong in November 2018.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Tam has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. Tian Tao (%), aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is responsible for
supervising the Group’s compliance, corporate governance matters
and providing independent judgment and advice to the Group.

From February 1999 to November 2015, Mr. Tian was the vice
general manager of CVSCTNS Research Co Ltd (R8T HRTTIKH
BIEAF]). From November 2015 to June 2017, he was the
president of Zhongguang Xincheng Information Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (REEHE ERIERH BRAF]). From July 2017 to
August 2018, he was the president of the Beijing office of Nielsen-
CCData Media Research Services Co., Ltd.* (JEER AR ARB LR S%
AR A BR A BlHE ;52 8)). Since September 2018, he has been
serving as the president of Zhongguang Rongxin Media Consulting
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (R ERMEHENFEAILR)BR A A). On 12
October 2022, Mr. Tian has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Many Idea Cloud Holdings Limited (stock
code: 6696), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Tian has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESRGAEEEREER (H)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liang Angqi (R Z #), aged 36, joined the Group in September
2017 and was promoted to chief supervisor (online and
entertainment) in May 2019. Mr. Liang is primarily responsible for
the intellectual property matters and entertainment business of the
Group.

Mr. Liang has over 13 years of experience in the media industry.
From April 2009 to March 2015, he worked at Phoenix Legend
Group Of IMC* (R Bl BE R B & F AR A R]), where he was
responsible for media strategic planning. From April 2015 to
October 2016, he was employed by Shenzhen Fangsheng Human
Resources Service Co,, Ltd* (BR T BEA N EIRRBBR A A).
From October 2016 to September 2017, he was the deputy
strategic director of the brand business department of EJAM
GROUP Co,, Ltd* (BEESEEHEEBERHD AR AF]), a company
whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ (stock code: 834498), where
he was responsible for promoting business projects, formulating
promotion strategy and organising media and internal resources.

Mr. Liang completed a course on power plant thermal operation
and installation held by Guangdong University of Technology, the
PRC and graduated in June 2008.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Liang has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Cristin Kuang (B8%), aged 45, joined the Group in December
2020 as Vice President, Sales & Marketing. She is responsible for
account sales & marketing management, leads team to deliver
assigned growth ambition and supports Ms. Liang in organization
management.

Ms. Kuang is a seasoned marketer with over 22 years marketing
experience including various areas like digital marketing, brand &
consumer marketing management, professional marketing and
retail customer marketing, etc. in top multi-national companies.
Proven record showed her roles in leading digital transformation
which significantly improve media utilization, turning around
several declining brands back to growth, developing effective
structure to improve organization efficiency, and establishing
digital marketing capability framework which facilitates growth of
the team. She also led her team winning series important marketing
industry awards, like China Great Wall Advertising Awards (47 B /&
£ R 4¥), ROl Marketing Awards (£ 1% 8 &% #2), Golden Mouse
Digital Marketing Awards (& EEIZ 81t ‘& 35 18), etc.

She has ever been as Digital Commerce Marketing Director,
Category Director for China Mint Category, Brand Leaders for series
of famous brands like FIVE Gum (5 E & #E), SKITTLES Confectionery
(FZHLHE), PIMPOM Lollipop (B £1EE 1), TATA Bubble Gum (X
AIBJBHE), EXTRA Gum (g3 0 EHE), etc. in Mars Wrigley China
Ltd GBECETHE (R ) AR A 7)), as well as taking important roles in
Mead Johnson Nutrition China Ltd (EERZ&mFE)ER A
a)), Kimberly-Clark China Ltd (& {8 F)(F B)A R 2 &) and
Avon China Ltd (JEZ5 (R BB R A A)).

Ms. Kuang has obtained a certification of Jury of 2019-2020 Effie
Awards Greater China. She is a Qualified Montessori Teacher and a
Chinese Financial Planner. Ms. Kuang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Economic from Zhongshan University with major in Marketing.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESRGAEEEREER (H)

Ms. Yi Yang (#Z€), aged 38, joined the Group in October 2020 as
the finance controller. Ms. Yang is mainly responsible for the listed
company affairs, risk management, corporate internal control and
internal audit.

Ms. Yang started her career as an accountant in KPMG Guangzhou
since 2007 until late 2011. Her clients included listed companies in
Hong Kong, China and the United States of America. From April
2012 to October 2018, Ms. Yang joined Health and Happiness (H&H)
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1112) and worked as a financial
analyst and subsequently the Group Reporting Manager,
responsible for the financial reporting matters of the company.
From October 2018 to September 2020, Ms. Yang served as a senior
manager in China Beststudy Education Group, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3978),
responsible for financial accounting and reporting, internal control
and compliance, as well as merger and acquisition activities. Ms.
Yang has more than 15 years of experience in finance, risk
management and internal control and extensive working
experience in fast moving consumer goods, retail and education
industries.

Ms. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Management School in
Sun Yat-Sen University in 2007. She was accredited as a Certified
Public Accountant (non-practising) by The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2010 and member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2012.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee (E%18) is a senior corporate secretarial
manager of Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited. Ms. Tung
has extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field, audit and
assurance, financial management and corporate finance, gained
from her working experience with an international accounting firm
and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. Ms. Tung
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Western Sydney, Australia in 2002 and a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from the University of Canberra, Australia in
1994,
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Report of the Directors

ESEWRE

The Board is pleased to present this Report of the Directors
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in provision of integrated
multimedia advertising and marketing solution services based in
Guangzhou, the PRC and offer advertising and marketing solutions
covering (i) traditional offline media including both OOH and
indoor advertising platforms; (i) online media; and (iii) PR, marketing
campaigns and other services to the customers comprising brand
owners, state-owned entities in the PRC, advertising agencies and
government authorities. The integrated multimedia advertising and
marketing solution service primarily focused on the formulation of
advertising strategies for the customers, and identifying and
sourcing the most appropriate advertising resources and formats to
maximise the effectiveness of the customers’ advertisements.

An analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the Year is
set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” in this annual
report and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and relationships with employees will
be disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s businesses and other relevant
information, are disclosed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis section”. Such discussion forms part of this “Report of the
Directors”.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for 2018 to 2022, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 236 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company and
details of the shares issued during the Year are set out in Note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. The Group recognises
employees as one of the valuable assets of the Group and the
Group strictly complies with the labour laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and PRC and regularly reviews the existing staff benefits
for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to the customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able to
establish cordial and long-term business relationship with the
major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and develops
healthy relationship with the suppliers.

Further details are set out in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EFEHE (@)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and is committed to becoming an environmentally-
friendly corporation. Details of the environmental, social and
governance policies and performance during the Year are disclosed
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance with
such requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Group has complied in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material
breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO") for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture as of the date of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” as
set out on pages 57 to 60 of this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
Year.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2021: nil).

BOOK CLOSE DATES

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and
vote at the 2023 AGM, the register of Members will be closed from
Tuesday, 9 May, 2023 to Friday, 12 May 2023 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. To
qualify for attending the 2023 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8 May 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Cayman Islands
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB69.2 million. Such
amounts may be distributed provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for 67.8% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 16.7%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 55.3% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchase from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 15.1%.

The Directors confirm that none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (who or which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Shares as at
the date of this annual report), has or had any interest in any of the
five largest suppliers or customers for the Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EFEHE (@)

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 59 employees (2021: 78).
They are all located in Guangzhou, the PRC. The number of
employees employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on need. To capture the growth of the online
advertising, the Group has recruited additional employees who
have the expertise in online advertising services. In addition,
members of the senior management team had exerted efforts on
the development of the Group's online advertising services.

Employees’ remuneration is determined based on their
responsibilities, qualifications, performance, experience and
seniority. The Group's standard remuneration package may include
salary, discretionary bonus, benefits in kind and incentive. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are
periodically reviewed.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is reviewed by the
Company’s remuneration committee which is based on the Group's
performance and the executives’ respective contributions to the
Group.

The remuneration of Directors and members of senior management
is determined based on the duties, responsibilities, experience, skills
and time commitment, as well as the performance of the Group.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in a defined contribution basic pension insurance in
the social insurance system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group’s PRC subsidiary contributes
funds which are calculated on certain percentages of the employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government to the scheme
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. There is no
forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 11 December
2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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The total remuneration cost (including directors’ emoluments)
incurred by the Group for the Year was RMB15.5 million (2021:
RMB12.8 million).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group for
the Year are disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save for the KINGOLD Advertising Services, Chaohuang
Advertising Services and the Strategic Cooperative Agreement (as
defined below), which constitute non-exempt continuing
connected transactions as further discussed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, the other related
party transactions under Note 24 were either fully exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules or did not
fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed in the section headed "Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, the Group had no other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which fell to be
disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that all related party transactions during the
Year were conducted after arm’s length negotiations, fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms and were not more
favourable to those offered by the Group to other independent
third parties for transactions of similar nature.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EFEHE (@)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
(IICCT")

(1)

Provision of advertising services by the Group to
KINGOLD and its subsidiaries (together, “KINGOLD
Group”)

The Group has been providing media advertising services to
KINGOLD Group as part of its usual course of business since
December 2014 and throughout the Track Record Period (as
defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
December 2019) (the “Prospectus”).

KINGOLD, a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC, is a majority controlled company indirectly
held by Mr. Chau, father of Mr. Chow who is the Controlling
Shareholder, executive Director and Chairman of the Board.
As such, each of the members of KINGOLD Group is an
associate of Mr. Chow and thus a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr.
Chow is also one of the directors of KINGOLD.

The scope of services includes but not limited to, sourcing of
advertising resources, placement of advertisements, strategic
planning, graphic designs, news editorial and content
advertorial in relation to brand promotion of hotels,
restaurants, residential and commercial properties developed
by KINGOLD Group. Such advertisements were placed on
various online platforms and media resources such as LCD
flat-panel displays and frame displays located at elevators and
lobbies in commercial buildings owned by independent third
parties and shopping malls, commercial buildings and
housing estates owned by KINGOLD Group.

On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into an advertising
services framework agreement (the “"KINGOLD Group
Advertising Services Framework Agreement”) with
KINGOLD (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) for a term
commenced from the Listing Date and ended on 31
December 2022 (subject to early termination pursuant to the
terms of the KINGOLD Group Advertising Services Framework
Agreement). Pursuant to the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement, the Group will provide
multimedia advertising services, including but not limited to
media advertising services, advertising materials production
services and event organisation and planning services (the
"KINGOLD Adyvertising Services”) to KINGOLD Group.

42 Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report

$%%’ﬁ‘%%%§%§ﬁ?&%(l’%%@ﬁﬁ?&
Z

(1) FAEEPREREHNBLR (KBR
[fEEEE ) RHUEERSE

20144 12 A 8 R B A A fo 8%
R (EERARFIBHAE2019F 12
A30BEMNBERER(BRER]))
MEEEEREEEESERE &
EREBEREEBH—EH °

BER—HREFBZENINE
FRAa] - I A mEESE LA (MW
ERREER AT EEREETSER
BRENRR) BERFE L ZEIE
HlEAF Al BHEEERNZK
BRARARLEENBE AL ALK
BGEM ETHRAE20E T AR AR
FEAT BAAENABEES

— o

BRI RS HERRETRR AR
HEEREEEMENEE B8 -
EEMBEENERENESERKE
B EERM BWEKE - VTER
A HERBAATERX - ZES
MERNZERLEFEREEER
WMEIRNBILE=TTE THOEERE
LEESEETNBYRS BX
RERMHEBEETFANEREMAED
R AR BUR 28 RAE SRR 25 o

MR2019F 128168 "NEBEHEESE
(BREARBEERRKENBRA)E]L
—HEESREEEGZ(EEEH
EERBERBE])  BHRAEE L
™ HE MBI 2022512 A31 B4
R(IBEEEEEREERBIELED
EEIRTIRATRLE) - REEEEE
EERBGERDBZE  ~5ERBME
EEERHZEBESRE 21
BTIRRAEEESRE  BEmR
BUERRTS M OE BN AR A K 5 &I AR (T 18
BEEERE] -



The KINGOLD Group Advertising Services Framework
Agreement is a framework agreement which provides the
mechanism for the provision of the KINGOLD Advertising
Services described therein. Separate agreements will be
entered into between both parties to provide for the terms
and conditions of the specific transactions in accordance with
the principal terms set out in the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement.

Having taken into consideration the historical service fees
charged by the Group to KINGOLD Group, the proposed
annual caps in relation to the provision of the KINGOLD
Advertising Services under the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2022 will not exceed RMB22,000,000.

The aggregate amount of service fees payable by KINGOLD
Group to the Group in respect of the provision of the
KINGOLD Advertising Services for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB1,918,000.

As the term of the KINGOLD Group Advertising Services
Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the
Company entered into a new KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement ("KINGOLD Group
Advertising Services New Framework Agreement’) on
28 December 2022 for a term of three years from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025.

Pursuant to the KINGOLD Group Advertising Services New
Framework Agreement, the Group shall provide KINGOLD and
its subsidiaries with multimedia advertising services, including
but not limited to media advertising services, advertising
materials production services and event organization and
planning services. Having considered the historical fees
payable by KINGOLD Group, the annual caps in respect of the
provision of the advertising services under the KINGOLD
Group Advertising Services New Framework Agreement for
each of the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025
will not exceed RMB4.5 million.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EFEHE (@)

(2)

*

Provision of advertising services by the Group to
Guangdong Chaohuang Restaurant Co., Ltd.* (&R #
ERFAR 2 F) (“Chaohuang Restaurant”)

The Group began to provide multimedia advertising services
to Chaohuang Restaurant in August 2013 as part of the
Group's ordinary and usual course of business.

Chaohuang Restaurant, a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC, is a majority-controlled company
indirectly held by Mr. Chau, father of Mr. Chow who is the
Controlling Shareholder, executive Director and Chairman of
the Board. As such, Chaohuang Restaurant is an associate of
Mr. Chow and thus a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Chow is also
one of the directors of Chaohuang Restaurant.

On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into an advertising
services framework agreement (the “Chaohuang Restaurant
Advertising Services Framework Agreement’) with
Chaohuang Restaurant for a term commenced from the
Listing Date and ended on 31 December 2022 (subject to
early termination pursuant to the terms of the Chaohuang
Restaurant Advertising Services Framework Agreement).
Pursuant to the Chaohuang Restaurant Advertising Services
Framework Agreement, the Group will provide multimedia
advertising services, including but not limited to media
advertising services, advertising materials production services
and event organisation and planning services (the
“Chaohuang Advertising Services”) to Chaohuang
Restaurant.

The Chaohuang Restaurant Advertising Services Framework
Agreement is a framework agreement which provides the
mechanism for the provision of the Chaohuang Advertising
Services described therein. Separate agreements will be
entered into between both parties to provide for the terms
and conditions of the specific transactions in accordance with
the principal terms set out in the Chaohuang Restaurant
Advertising Services Framework Agreement.

For identification purpose only
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(3)

Having taken into consideration the historical service fees
charged by the Group to Chaohuang Restaurant, the
proposed annual caps in relation to the provision of the
Chaohuang Advertising Services under the Chaohuang
Restaurant Advertising Services Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2022 will not
exceed RMB200,000.

The aggregate amount of service fees payable by Chaohuang
Restaurant to the Group in respect of the provision of the
Chaohuang Advertising Services for the Year amounted to
approximately RMBO.

Provision of advertising spaces by Guangzhou
KINGOLD to the Group

On 16 December 2019, the Company entered into an advertising
spaces framework agreement (“Guangzhou KINGOLD
Advertising Spaces Framework Agreement”) with
Guangzhou KINGOLD Property Co, Lid* (BEMNEEME B R
3 7)) ("Guangzhou KINGOLD") for a term commenced from
the Listing Date and ended on 31 December 2022. Pursuant to
the Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising Spaces Framework
Agreement, Guangzhou KINGOLD would provide the Company
with platforms and spaces such as shopping malls, commercial
buildings, housing estates and golf club owned by KINGOLD
Group. The transactions under the Guangzhou KINGOLD
Advertising Spaces Framework Agreement constituted de
minimis continuing connected transactions under Rule 20.74(1)
() of the GEM Listing Rules.

As the term of the Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising Spaces
Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the
Company entered into a new Guangzhou KINGOLD
Advertising Spaces Framework Agreement ("“New
Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising Spaces Framework
Agreement’) on 28 December 2022 for a term of three years
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

(3)
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Pursuant to the New Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising
Spaces Framework Agreement, Guangzhou KINGOLD shall
provide the Group with platforms and spaces such as
shopping malls, commercial buildings, housing estates and
golf club owned by KINGOLD and its subsidiaries for the
Group to provide advertising services to the customers of the
Group. Having considered the historical fees charged by
Guangzhou KINGOLD, the annual caps in relation to the
transaction amount payable by the Group for the provision of
the advertising spaces by Guangzhou KINGOLD under the
New Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising Spaces Framework
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 will not exceed RMB4.0 million.

Guangzhou KINGOLD is a company established under the
laws of the PRC with limited liability. Guangzhou KINGOLD is
held as to approximately 59.1%, 24.5% and 16.4% by Imperial
Springs Centre for Health Management* (£ & B BX 4 ap i
FEEIRARR AT (‘lmperial Springs”), KINGOLD and Hong
Kong Kingson Investment Limited, respectively. Imperial
Springs is held as to approximately 50.05% and 49.95% by
KINGOLD and Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Huishan
Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(BRBILRTEREMREEESREE(BRER)),
respectively. Hong Kong Kingson Investment Limited is a
company wholly owned by the parents of Mr. Chow. Hence,
Guangzhou KINGOLD is a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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(4)

Provision of advertising services to Tianhong Real
Estate Group

On 10 June 2022, Guangzhou Icon Culture Media Investment
Co, Ltd* (& M K 3h X AL B K % & B R 2 7) (lcon
Media") entered into a strategic cooperative agreement
("Strategic Cooperative Agreement’) with Guangzhou
Tianhong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (J& 1 K545 i,
ERMZE AR A A)) (‘Tianhong Real Estate’) and Guangzhou
Tianhuihui Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (BN KIEE B X BR A F))
("Guangzhou Tianhuihui’, together with Tianhong Real
Estate, the “Tianhong Real Estate Group”), pursuant to
which Icon Media would provide advertising services to
Tianhong Real Estate Group for the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022. The annual cap in respect of the
provision of advertising services under the Strategic
Cooperative Agreement was RMB8,000,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The aggregate amount of fee payable by Tianhong Real
Estate Group to the Group in respect of the provision of
advertising services under the Strategic Cooperative
Agreement amounted to approximately RMB1,865,000 this
year.

As the term of the Strategic Cooperative Agreement expired
on 31 December 2022, on 28 December 2022, Ilcon Media
entered into a new strategic cooperative agreement (“New
Strategic Cooperative Agreement’) with Tianhong Real
Estate Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2025. Pursuant to the New Strategic
Cooperative Agreement, lcon Media shall provide the
advertising services, including but not limited to, media
advertising services, public relations, marketing campaigns
and other services, to the Tianhong Real Estate Group. The
annual caps in respect of the provision of the advertising
services by the Group under the New Strategic Cooperative
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 will not exceed RMB4,200,000.

(4)
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Tianhong Real Estate and Guangzhou Tianhuihui are
companies established under the laws of the PRC with limited
liability. Tianhong Real Estate is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Chow. Guangzhou Tianhuihui is held by Tianhong Real
Estate and KINGOLD as to 70% and 30%, respectively. Hence,
each of Tianhong Real Estate and Guangzhou Tianhuihui is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

For details on the terms of the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement, the Chaohuang Restaurant
Advertising Services Framework Agreement and the
Guangzhou KINGOLD Advertising Spaces Framework
Agreement, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” to the Prospectus. For details on the
terms of the KINGOLD Group Advertising Services New
Framework Agreement, the New Guangzhou KINGOLD
Advertising Spaces Framework Agreement, the Strategic
Cooperative Agreement and the New Strategic Cooperative
Agreement, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 10 June 2022 and 28 December 2022.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
such transactions have been entered into: (1) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (2) on normal
or better commercial terms; and (3) according to the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Confirmation of the auditor

KPMG, the Company's independent auditor (the “Auditor”)
was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“Auditor’s Letter’). KPMG has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
A copy of the Auditor's Letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Conclusion of the Auditor’s assurance report on continuing
connected transactions:

a.  nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company'’s board of directors;

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
Auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

c. nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out in the above
list of continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to the Auditor's attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairman)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek

Ms. Liang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Biao

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
Mr. Tian Tao

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 35 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation.

Accordingly, three Directors will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted indemnity
provision has been in force for the Year. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for
its Directors and officers.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
on 11 December 2019 with the Company commencing on the
Listing Date, which can be terminated by either party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company on 11 December 2019
for an initial term of one year commencing on the Listing Date,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors’ letter of appointment has
been renewed with a term of three years, expiring on 13 January
2024,

The term of service of a Director is subject to the provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles of
Association.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors has or is proposed to have
a service contract or appointment letter with the Company or any
of the subsidiaries other than contracts or letters expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other remuneration are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibility and performance and
the results of the Group as well as the recommendations of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).
Further details of Director's remuneration and the five highest-paid
individuals are set out in Note 7 and Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 199 to 201 of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2022, if any, are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of significance
with the Controlling Shareholders or their respective close
associates, or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective close associates, during the Year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Shining Icon, Sense One and Mr. Chow, who are the Controlling
Shareholders (each a “Covenantor” and collectively, the
"Covenantors’) entered into the deed of non-competition in
favour of our Company (for ourselves and as trustee for each of our
subsidiaries) (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section headed
"Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the
Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or an entity associated with him or her has or had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the Year.
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COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors, or the Controlling Shareholders or substantial
Shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group and which requires disclosure pursuant
to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” below, at no time during the Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or
granted any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights or exercise any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

EERESTHRAERKRAD - HE
R REEENEZ KR

R202F 128318 ARAREENRS
THRABRARRSHIEE ZE(FER
BHENEEEDIE XVER) Z R - R
MEREEEFEEQREZHFRBEK
BIEXVELE 7 M8 H R EAME RN A
MR AT(BEREESMBEEINE
BRI W & 1E SR B A T e ok
RE) R KORE - () RIEEH &S
B 55 352 1R 7B R 8 PR a% IR FIT il & R At
MiEm KRB T OB IEGEM TR A
F546ES67REBERGREFEENG
RATI R ATRIRES ART

Number of Approximate

Ordinary percentage of

Shares held shareholding (%)

Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Note 5)

g BEREE B2 (%)

EspnE B3 REEME (Btat1) (BtaE5)

Mr. Chow (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 87,750,000 Shares (L) 48.75%
corporation

B (Bfat2) REHEE S 87,750,000 A&7 (L) 48.75%

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek Interest in a controlled 13,500,000 Shares (L) 7.50%
("Mr. Lau”) (Note 3) corporation

FImmE i ([8%E]) Rt EE RS 13,500,000 B A% 15 (L) 7.50%

(HtaE3)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan (“Ms. Cai") Interest in a controlled 33,750,000 Shares (L) 18.75%
(Note 4) corporation

st (%L t]) REHEE S 33,750,000 A&7 (L) 18.75%

(Kiat4)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares.

2. Shining Icon and Sense One are wholly-owned by Mr. Chow.
Therefore, Mr. Chow is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Shining Icon and Sense One pursuant to SFO.

3. Master Connection is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau. Therefore, Mr. Lau is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Master Connection
pursuant to SFO.

4. Focus Wonder is wholly-owned by Ms. Cai. Therefore, Ms. Cai is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Focus Wonder
pursuant to SFO.

5. The calculation is based on the total number of 180,000,000 Shares
inissue as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Director nor the chief executives of the Company has any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERRRAKRD - HERORERE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES EHhpER

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (not being Directors 72022512 318 » L FA L (I IEAR R
or chief executives of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, TBIEEHHEETHAE) RAQBIKRMN &
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of — fHEEARD B SR BB RIEFS &
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and ~ ERE & FI S XVEFE 2 R 3D 2 R EAM
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part 7N 7] R B AT PR it R MR 2 SOK A S B 0
XV of the SFO or which were required to be recorded in the register ~ AZNA AR 15 5 5 R BR & &0 5 336 161F
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 B 7 # s S MAMEZESARE -

of the SFO:

Number of Approximate

Ordinary percentage of

Shares held shareholding

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (%) (Note 2)
FrsEEREE B2 (%)

[ B, EEkE (HfaE1) (Ktat2)
Shining Icon Beneficial Owner 69,660,000 Shares (L) 38.70%
Shining Icon ExnEAA 69,660,000 A% A% 17 (L) 38.70%
Focus Wonder Beneficial Owner 33,750,000 Shares (L) 18.75%
Focus Wonder ExnEAA 33,750,000 BB 19 (L) 18.75%
Sense One Beneficial Owner 18,090,000 Shares (L) 10.05%
Sense One ExnEAA 18,090,000 PEA% 17 (L) 10.05%
Master Connection Beneficial Owner 13,500,000 Shares (L) 7.50%
Master Connection BEnEA A 13,500,000 AZAZ 17 (L) 7.50%

Notes:

Ffet -

(1) FEILEREDOER -

(1) Theletter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares.

(2)  The calculation is based on the total number of 180,000,000 Shares ~ (2) Ut J3iRIERR 2022F 12 A31 BB E1TK

in issue as at 31 December 2022. 12 4#287180,000,000 i 5T E B H
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company whose
interests are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme has been conditionally adopted on 11
December 2019. No options had been granted, agreed to be
granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option
Scheme during the Year and up to the date of this report.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as
follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in below) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to provide the Eligible Participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the
view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group;

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group;
and/or

(iii)  for such purposes as the Board may approve from time to
time.
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EFEHE (@)

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any of the Eligible Participants, as defined below,
options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph headed “Subscription price of shares” below for such
number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) shall include any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Group and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents, advisers and related entities who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

Maximum number of shares

18,000,000, that is, the maximum number of Shares issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company as
from 11 December 2019 (excluding, for this purpose, Shares
issuable upon exercise of options which have been granted but
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the Shares in
issue as at the Listing Date which is 180,000,000 Shares.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The number of options available for grant under
the Share Option Scheme was 18,000,000 as at 1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022, respectively. As at the date of this report, the
total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 18,000,000, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
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Maximum number of Shares comprised in options to
any one individual

1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant.

Period within which the securities must be taken up
under an option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.

Period within which an option may be exercised

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as our Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

There is no such requirement imposed by the Share Option
Scheme, provided that the Directors, may impose such requirement
upon grant of the option on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
options

The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day;
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
option. For the purpose of calculating the subscription price,
where the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange
for less than five business days, the issue price of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange shall be used as the closing price for
any business day fall within the period before listing.

Remaining Life of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Listing Date (i.e. 14 January 2020) and will expire
on 13 January 2030.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Innovax Capital Limited (“lnnovax”), the compliance
adviser of the Company, save for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and Innovax dated 20 June
2019, neither Innovax nor any of its close associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules), the directors or employees had any interest
in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any)
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule
6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as up to the date of this annual
report.

PUBLICFLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
percentage of public float under the GEM Listing Rules.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in
Directors’ information are set out below:

iii)

with effect from 17 February 2023, Mr. Chow Eric Tse To was
appointed as a director of Guangdong Huaxing Bank Co,, Ltd,

on 8 November 2022, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia, an
independent non-executive Director, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of Meihao Medical
Group Co., Ltd (stock code: 1947), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and

on 12 October 2022, Mr. Tian Tao, an independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Many Idea Cloud Holdings Limited
(stock code: 6696), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by KPMG, the Auditor.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Auditor.

There was no changes in the Auditor during the past three years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant event from the end of the Year to the
date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report
S¥EREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate
governance in management and internal procedures to promote
and ensure accountability. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on principles and code provisions as set out in
the section headed "Part 2 — Principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices” of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules ("Corporate Governance Code") . During the
Year, the Company’s corporate governance practices have been
complied with and it will continue to comply with the Corporate
Governance Code.

THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairman)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek

Ms. Liang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Biao

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
Mr. Tian Tao

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 35 of this annual report. Save as
disclosed, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Chow
acted as the Chairman and Ms. Liang Wei acted as the Chief
Executive Officer. The Chairman performs the management of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer performs the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses. Clear division of their
respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set out in writing
to ensure a balance of power and authority.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board will meet regularly and schedule to meet at least four
times every year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code. Apart from regular Board
meetings, the Chairman will also hold meeting annually with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.

At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting will be normally given to
all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Board’s procedures comply with the
Articles of Association as well as the relevant rules and regulations.

Board minutes of each Board meeting and minutes of the meetings
of the committees shall be prepared in sufficient details for the
matters considered and resolved. Draft and final versions of minutes
shall be sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the meetings were held.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and Board committees shall
be duly kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
"Company Secretary’) and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and general ARFEE  KEEZHFEET@ @2 LREKX
meetings during the Year is set out in the table below: SHBREHN X

Attendance/ Attendance at general meeting/
Name of Directors Number of meeting Number of meeting

EEpS HESBRE SR RH HERRAERE KERE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To 4/4 1/1
BFEEE

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan 4/4 1/1
SEM L+

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek 3/4 11
Bt

Ms. Liang Wei 4/4 1/
R+

Mr. Liu Biao 4/4 1/1
EllEie

Independent non-executive

Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster 4/4 1/1
FIRE S E

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia 4/4 11
BEMAZ L

Mr. Tian Tao 4/4 1/1
REE A
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
considers each of them to be independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year commencing from the Listing Date. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors’ letter of appointment has been renewed
for a term of three years with effective date until 13 January 2024.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The executive Directors oversee the daily
operations of the Group, while our independent non-executive
Directors bring independent judgment to the decision making
process of the Board, taking into account the advice of the senior
management of the Group.

The Group's senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business, carrying out the business
decisions of the Group, and is responsible for overseeing the
general operation, business development, finance, marketing, and
operations as well as other essential management functions of the
Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), Remuneration Committee
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each of
these committees are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 11 December
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision D.3.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors
members, namely Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
and Mr. Tian Tao. Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster, is the chairperson of the
Audit Committee.

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing, in draft form,
the annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports and providing advice and comments to the Board. In this
regard, members of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board,
the senior management, the reporting accountants and auditor.
The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or usual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matter that have been
raised by the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditor.
Members of the Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
system.
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During the Year, five Audit Committee meetings were held and
among other things, reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual
results and the Group'’s accounting policies and practices, the GEM
Listing Rules and statutory compliance, annual audit plan, risk
management and internal control systems and financial reporting
matters. The attendance record of each committee member at the
meetings is set out below:

Name of committee members

REEREHER
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Attendance at meeting/Number of meeting

HESBRE BTERRE

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster (Chairperson)
PIREBEA (F/E)

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia

EEM 2+

Mr. Tian Tao

Bkt

The Audit Committee had, together with the management,
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
audited consolidated financial statements have complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 11
December 2019. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Siu Hang
Foster, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia and Mr. Tian Tao. Ms. Tam Hon Shan
Celia, is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. Written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code have been adopted.

5/5
5/5

5/5
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Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held
and, among other things, reviewed the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management, assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and the senior management, reviewed the remuneration package
of the executive Directors and the senior management, made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration (including
remuneration of the non-executive Directors) and reviewed the
share scheme under the GEM Listing Rules. The attendance record
of each committee member at the meeting is set out below:

Name of committee members
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Attendance at meeting/Number of meeting

HESEAE BIEBERE

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Chairperson)
BEML L (F/E)

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster

IR E

Mr. Tian Tao

HExEE

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the

Company for the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by ARNEEIRGTMERE P NS REIEEKE
band for the Year is set out below: N DT

Remuneration bands (HKD) Number of persons
FMESR (BT A
Nil to 1,000,000 3

= £ 1,000,000
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 11
December 2019. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Chow Eric Tse To, Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster
and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia. Mr. Chow Eric Tse To, our Chairman
and executive Director, is the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee. Written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code have been
adopted.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
evaluates skills, knowledge and experience required by the Board,
and identifies if there are any special requirements for the vacancy.
The Nomination Committee identifies appropriate candidates and
convenes Nomination Committee meeting to discuss and vote in
respect of the nominated Directors, and recommends candidates
for Directors to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers candidates with individual
skills, experience and professional knowledge that can best assist
and facilitate the effectiveness of the Board. The Nomination
Committee takes the policy on Board diversity of the Company into
consideration when it considers the balance of composition of the
Board as a whole.
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During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held
and, among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the Board diversity
made recommendation on the re-election of retiring Directors. The
attendance record of each committee member at the meeting is
set out below:

Name of committee members

REEREMR

RERBENAFEERIT-REH I
(EPeR)RdEFTeRE  ABLA
A FHEBIFITE SR - FE
EEg MU RERREESFLHE
BER ZEeSKELFEZNCEH
Hank

Attendance at meeting/Number of meeting

HESBRY BITEBRE

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairperson)
BFREE(FE)

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster
FIRBEHE

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
BEM

Board Diversity Policy and Measurable Objectives

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, selection of Board candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry
experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and experiences,
including business management, strategic development, media
and advertising, sales management and administration experiences.
The Company is also committed to adopting similar approach to
promote diversity of the management (including but not limited to
the senior management) of the Company to enhance the
effectiveness of corporate governance. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for ensuring the diversity of the Board and reviews
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness.
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Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board’s composition, size
and structure under diversified perspectives, and monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board’'s composition under
diversified perspectives was summarized as follows:
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y

BITRER

RAZBEEEFRNESTEEZTIEER
ZHARK - RRNIRE - YEREEENE
ZIEBRZ AT

RAHFERS  EFerEZbEm 248
ABtaian R

Designation B4 INED %37 JEHNE

Gender 3] Female %2

Agegroup  TFEERAA R 50-55 years old 502557 _
6 7 8

ED : Executive Director WE WMITES

INED Independent Non-executive Director BN IEHE BN IEHITES

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group has
complied with the Board Diversity Policy and has achieved board
gender diversity.
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Workforce Level

The Group maintained a good balance on gender diversity by
achieving a gender balance (40%-60% women) across different
levels of the Group. The Group is an integrated multimedia
advertising and marketing solutions service provider which has no
specific barrier for specific gender.

The details of workforce composition of the Group is disclosed
under the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this
annual report.

Independence

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent
views and input are available to the Board. The governance
framework and the following mechanisms are reviewed annually
by the Board including the criteria of the size, structure and
composition of the Board and Board Committees, Board Diversity
Policy, Directors’ compensation, availability of information and
access to senior management, Board decision making mechanism
as well as access to independent professional advice. The
Nomination Committee also strictly adheres to the Nomination
Policy and the independence assessment criteria as set out in the
GEM Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of INEDs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, which
include (a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and directors; and (e) to review the
issuer’'s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report. The Board would
review the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the Year, the Company has arranged training on directors’
duties and responsibilities for all Directors. The training sessions
covered a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties
and responsibilities, corporate governance and interpretation of
laws and regulations relating to connected transactions, inside
information and anti-corruption for their reference and studying.
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According to the training records maintained by the Company, the
continuous professional development programmes received by
each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

BERARGFENEIGLE  SEFNA
FERNEXOFEZELERE MM
T

Type of trainings

Name of Directors BEENA EAER
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To BFExE AandB
AKB
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan £l 4+ Aand B
ANB
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek BIREE KL Aand B
ANB
Ms. Liang Wei R+ Aand B
AKB
Mr. Liu Biao Tt AandB
ANB
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster FIRE A AandB
ANB
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia 2L+ Aand B
AKB
Mr. Tian Tao RS EE AandB
ANB
A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, ~ A: 2 MNEIIRRE - BEETERHNE
briefings, conferences, forums and workshops By g% wWERIES

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and
responsibilities

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules (the “Model Code").

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding
them of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of financial results. Having been made a specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code during the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Responsibility and Remuneration

The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor for the Year. A
statement issued by KPMG about their reporting responsibilities for
the financial statements is included in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 138 to 146.

Details of the fees paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided by KPMG for the Year are set out in the
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table below: EAFE
Fees charged
Services rendered iR 89 IR 75 P B E A
(RMB)
(AR¥)

Audit services EiT AR

— Financial statements audit for the Year — REFE B RREZ 1,680,000 7T
Non-audit services JEE T AR Nil £
Total BEtT 1,680,000 7©
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Company's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control measures
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

To safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group, the
Company has maintained an internal control system covering
corporate governance, risk management, quality control, financial
reporting, as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting. To ensure continuous compliance of all
applicable laws and regulations, the Group has taken and will take
the following measures:

A.  The Board will review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control (including ESG function) on an annual
basis to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and will ensure that on-going improvements will
be made to the internal control system;

B.  The Audit Committee has been established to review the
internal control system and procedures for compliance with
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules; and

C.  The Group has an internal audit function and appointed a
controller overseeing corporate internal control and internal
audit. The controller has formulated the internal audit plan
and the Articles of Internal Audit.

The Board, through internal audit division and Audit Committee,
has conducted annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system for the Year, and
considered the Group's risk management and internal control
system as adequate and effective.
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Linkage Between Corporate Governance and
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)

The Group has developed a core governance framework to ensure
the alignment of ESG governance with its strategic growth while
advocating ESG integration into its business operations. The Board
holds overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategies, ensuring
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control mechanisms, with the assistance of the ESG Working Group.

In order to assist the Board in implementing ESG initiatives and
ensuring the establishment of an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal monitoring system, the Group has set up
the ESG Working Group, which is composed of representatives
from various functional departments, to report to the Board
regularly and fully implement the Group’s ESG strategies and
related actions. The ESG Working Group also makes
recommendations to the Board regarding its management
approach, strategies, and setting ESG-related goals and targets in
relation to the Group's business.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules and is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose
the information to the public;

decides and implements monitoring procedures regarding
dissemination of inside information; and

communicates with relevant persons about corporate
information disclosure practices with respective training.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 13 November 2020. During the Year, Ms. Tung
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
Her biography is set out on page 35 of this annual report in the
section of “Biographical Information of Directors And Senior
Management”.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary on corporate governance and board practices and
matters. Each of Ms. Liang Wei, an executive Director, and Ms. Yi
Yang, the finance controller of the Group, have been designated as
the primary contact persons at the Company which would work
and communicate with Ms. Tung on the Company’s corporate
governance and company secretarial matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (the
“EGM”) by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Directors
may, whenever they think fit, convene an EGM. An EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders’
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for the purpose
of requiring an EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

A Shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong
of the Company at 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the Shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at
general meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and
its supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company's principal
place of business in 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have equal
and timely access to information about the Company in order to
enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company's website, corporate email, financial reports, AGMs and
other EGMs that may be convened as well as all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ communication policy during the Year and
concluded that it is effective because all the Directors attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2022
either by person or by means of electronic facilities to
communicate with the shareholders of the Company. In addition,
all corporate communications and regulatory announcements
were published by the Company on its website and the website of
the Stock Exchange in a timely manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors shall decide and recommend the amount of
dividends (or decide not to recommend any dividend) based on
the earnings, cash flows, financial condition, capital requirements,
future plans of the Group and any other conditions that the
Directors deem relevant at such time. The foregoing, including the
dividend distribution record, should not be viewed as a reference
or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future. There is no guarantee or
representation or indication that the Directors must or will
recommend and that the Group must or will pay dividends or
declare and pay dividends at all.

The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends are
subject to the discretion of the Board depending on the earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and the provisions governing
the declaration and distribution as contained in the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and other relevant factors.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company (‘new
M&A") at the 2022 AGM which was held on 12 May 2022, so as to,
among others, comply with the new GEM Listing Rules and
Corporate Governance Code which came into effect on 1 January
2022. The new M&A were available on the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CHERERBRE

INTRODUCTION

Icon Culture Global Company Limited (the “Company’, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is an integrated
multimedia advertising and marketing solution service provider
based in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and offer advertising and marketing solutions to our customers.
Services we provide include: (i) traditional offline media, including
out-of-home and indoor advertising platforms; (ii) online media
advertising services; and (iii) public relations, marketing campaigns
and other services.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report ("ESG Report”’)
summarises the environmental, social, and governance ("ESG")
initiatives, plans, and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has developed a core governance framework to ensure
the alignment of ESG governance with its strategic growth while
advocating ESG integration into its business operations. The
structure of the Group’s corporate social responsibility is divided
into two components, namely the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Working Group (the
"ESG Working Group”").

The Board holds overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategies,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group's risk management. The
Board is responsible for overseeing all ESG-related matters,
including the identification, evaluation, and management of
sustainability risks and opportunities, with the assistance of the ESG
Working Group. Based on the recommendations from the ESG
Working Group, the Board manages the Group’s ESG performance,
approaches, priorities, and strategies on an ongoing basis, including
setting ESG-related goals and targets and reviewing the progress
made towards achieving those goals and targets. The Board
discusses and reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and
targets at least once annually with the assistance of the ESG
Working Group, and ensures the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management systems and internal control mechanisms.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

In order to assist the Board in implementing ESG initiatives and
ensuring the establishment of an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal monitoring system, the Group has set up
the ESG Working Group, which is composed of representatives
from various functional departments, to report to the Board
regularly and fully implement the Group’s ESG strategies and
related actions. The ESG Working Group also makes
recommendations to the Board regarding its management
approach, strategies, and setting ESG-related goals and targets in
relation to the Group's business. In addition, the ESG Working
Group examines and evaluates the performance of different ESG
aspects of the Group, such as environment, health and safety,
labour standards, and product responsibilities, on an annual basis.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The reporting scope of this ESG Report is discussed and confirmed
by the Group’s senior management. This ESG Report covers the
operating activities that are considered material by the Group,
including traditional offline media advertising services, online
media advertising services, public relations, marketing campaigns,
and other service segments of lcon Media. Icon Media is the
Group's wholly-owned subsidiary with two offices in Guangzhou,
where its business activities represent approximately 100% of the
Group's total revenue.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the "ESG Reporting Guide") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Information relating
to the Group's corporate governance structure and practices has
been set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE - HERERRE (H)

Reporting Principles

The content of this ESG Report follows the reporting principles of
the ESG Reporting Guide.

Materiality: This ESG Report is structured based on the materiality of
respective issues, resulting from the materiality assessment. The
result of the materiality assessment was reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and the ESG Working Group. For further details, please
refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and
“Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide and discloses key performance indicators
("KPIs") in a quantitative manner. Information regarding the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
references, and sources of key conversion factors used for KPIs is
stated wherever appropriate.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the Group's disclosure and
statistical methods are consistent with the previous financial year,
which is the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021"), for
meaningful comparison. If there is a change that may affect
comparisons with previous reports, the Group will add explanatory
notes to the relevant sections of this report.

REPORTING PERIOD
The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges, and

measures taken by the Group during the financial year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year" or “2022").
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BOARD STATEMENT

The Board is pleased to present the Group's ESG Report for 2022. As
an annual summary of the Group's sustainable development, the
ESG Report fully demonstrates how the Group attaches great
importance to sustainable development, discloses the Group’s
performance in all aspects of sustainable development, shows our
vision and commitment to sustainable development, and at the
same time provides us the opportunity to understand the
expectations and demands of its key stakeholders regarding the
Group's sustainable development.

Committed to incorporating corporate social responsibilities into its
business operations, the Board accepts full responsibility for the
sustainability of the Group, including formulating strategies,
overseeing its ESG performance and relevant risks, and approving
the ESG Report. The Board also regularly reviews the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control mechanisms,
assures the Group remains compliant with regulatory requirements,
operates on a sustainable basis in the long term, and continuously
strives to enhance its economic, environmental, social, and
community commitments.

Meanwhile, the Group has also established an ESG Working Group,
which has clear terms of reference that set out the powers
delegated to it by the Board to demonstrate the Group’s
commitment to sustainability with transparency and accountability.
The management and ESG Working Group are primarily responsible
for identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the
effectiveness of internal control mechanisms. During the Year, the
ESG Report and ESG-related issues are reviewed and confirmed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)

Sustainability is integrated into all aspects of our business and
operations. The Group is doing its part through implementing the
Group's ESG strategies in areas such as green operation, quality,
technological innovation, employees and employment, users,
business ethics, the value chain, and social contribution. In
particular, to further decarbonisation efforts, the Group has put
forward four environmental targets in the areas of energy, waste,
and greenhouse gas ("GHG") management in 2021. The
environmental targets were approved by the Board, and the
progress will be reviewed by the ESG Working Group annually.

Moreover, the Group seeks to develop a climate-resilient portfolio
through collaborative efforts in addition to improving the overall
sustainability of the environment. During the Year, the Group has
included climate reporting with reference to the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures recommendations to report
climate-related risks and challenges and help us improve in this
critical area.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all stakeholders for their continued care and support
for the sustainable development of the Group. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to strengthen its communication with
stakeholders and improve relevant ESG strategies to further
enhance the Group's performance in terms of environmental and
social aspects, thereby meeting the requirements of regulators and
investors for sustainable development and creating long-term and
sustainable value for shareholders and stakeholders of the Group.
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Environ

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, the Group maintains close communications
with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers and subcontractors, government
and regulatory authorities, as well as communities and the public.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
considers stakeholders’ expectations by utilising various
engagement methods and communication channels, as shown
below:

mental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - ERERBRE (B)
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Stakeholder Key Communication Channels Expectations
#0E FTEBBRE HE
Shareholders . Announcements and circulars Satisfactory financial results

Financial reports
Shareholders’ meetings
Company website

. Advertorials

- BBHE
BRERE
NGIE
SEEX

Customers . Customer hotline
Telephone and face-to-face
meetings
Tenders
Bidding sessions

. Contracts
®F - BEPRE
. BHREE
Rize

PPy
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Employees . Correspondences and suggestion
box
Annual performance appraisal
Training, seminars and briefing
sessions
Department and company
meetings/conferences

=] - BAKERAE

- FEBREZ

23l - e REN®
BFARARAGIE  HEE

Corporate sustainability
Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

SARMBNP RS
EAFEER
BTAEAREEER

Product and service responsibility
Customer information protection
Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

EmLkRFEE
BEFEERE
ETRBER SRR

Health and safety

Equal opportunities
Remuneration and benefits
Career development
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) KhEZHE (&)

Stakeholder Key Communication Channels Expectations

BHE FTERBRBERE HE

Suppliers and . Business correspondences Fair competition
subcontractors . Procurement contracts and letters of - Cooperation with mutual benefits

undertaking
. Performance appraisals
HEFR D EH - RBHEKR
- REBEH MK
BERZ

Government and . Compliance inspections
regulatory authorities - Conferences and seminars
Specialised visits and consultations

BRREE#E - AHmE
- EEkAFE
HBREFG LB
Communities and the . Press releases and news
public . Company website

Community activities
Industry associations
. Sales industry case competitions
HERAR - HERNMEE
. DA
HRIES
BES
EIHTRERRDILLE

The Group endeavours to actively listen to and collaborate with its
stakeholders to ensure that their opinions can be voiced through
proper communication channels. In the long run, the stakeholders’
contributions will aid the Group in improving potentially
overlooked ESG performances and sustaining the success of the
Group's business in the challenging market.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder engagement and communications are crucial in
understanding the expectations and priorities of the Group's
stakeholders. With the assistance of the ESG Working Group, the
Group identified a list of material ESG issues for the Group, based
on its business, the ESG Reporting Guide, and the analysis of
industry peers. To prioritise the identified material ESG issues, the
Group conducted a materiality assessment survey during the Year.
Management, employees of different business units and
departments, as well as external stakeholders, were invited to
evaluate the significance of the identified ESG issues to the
stakeholders and the Group's business. Based on the results of the
survey, the Group compiled the materiality matrix. The results of
the materiality assessment were reviewed and validated by the
Group's ESG Working Group, and then approved by the Board.
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Materiality Matrix
High EEMEM
= More material
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Protection of Intellectual
Property (“IP") Rights
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g / Use of Resources ERER
g Waste Management AR
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. Air Emissions
Less material PR
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Low Impact on the Group’s Sustainable Development ngh
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During the Year, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal control
systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or the Group's performances in sustainable development by
sending an email to info@iconspace.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
A1. Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations. The Group recognises its
environmental responsibilities in relation to its business
operations and incorporates environmental
considerations into its decision-making processes.
Therefore, the Group continues to focus on the
development of the environmental protection
mechanism and has formulated relevant policies,
regulations, and procedures to regulate the generation
of air pollutants, GHG, waste, and sewage during
operations. The Group has also adopted relevant
policies and procedures to protect and improve the
environment and promote sustainability within our
business.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water
and land, and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that would have a significant impact
on the Group, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - ERERBRE (B)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE (&)

A1, BEE (&)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Due to the Group’s office-based business nature, it does
not have a significant impact on the environment. The
Group nevertheless continuously improves existing
policies and incorporates new policies with the
intention of mitigating potential direct and indirect
negative environmental impacts arising from its
business operations.

Air Emissions

The Group's emissions are mainly from petrol consumed
by transportation. Due to the Group’s business nature,
the Group does not generate a significant amount of
exhaust gas emissions directly during its operations.
Nevertheless, the Group has established policies relating
to the reduction of air emissions, including:

encourage employees to take public transport
during the business trip;

encourage employees to reduce unnecessary
overseas business trips, thus reducing indirect
carbon emissions;

maintain vehicles on a monthly basis to effectively
reduce fuel consumption, thereby reducing
carbon emissions and exhaust gas emissions;

switch off the engine whenever the vehicle is
idling; and

purchase regular petrol for vehicles and conduct
annual inspections to ensure vehicles are meeting
relevant emission standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RE (&)
A1. Emissions (Continued) A1, B ()

Air Emissions (Continued) BEREEH (&)
Summary of exhaust gas emissions performance: BERBEMFIRME -
Types of Exhaust Gas Unit 2022 2021
BRER By 2022 F 20215
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 24.19 28.64
REY(NO) /NI
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg 0.05 0.05
Rea b (so) NI
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 2.26 2.68
FERLYD (PM) NI
GHG Emissions BERBEHEMN

92

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
direct emissions from the combustion of petrol
consumption (Scope 1), energy indirect emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2), and other indirect
emissions from paper waste disposal at landfills (Scope
3). Committed to reducing GHG emissions, the Group
has set a target in 2021 to reduce GHG emissions
intensity (tCO,e/million revenue (RMB)) gradually by
2026, using 2021 as the baseline year. To achieve this
target, the Group actively adopts various measures to
reduce GHG emissions, including:

actively adopt vehicular emission reduction
measures, which are described in the section
headed “Air Emissions” under this aspect;

actively adopt measures for energy conservation,
which are described in the section headed “Energy
Consumption” under aspect A2; and

actively adopt measures for waste reduction,

which are described in the section headed "Waste
Management” under this aspect.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

GHG Emissions (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE - HERERRE ()

A. RIE(E)

A1l.

During the Year, the Group’s total GHG emissions
intensity was approximately 0.73 tCO,e/million revenue
(RMB) (2021: approximately 0.24 tCO,e/million revenue
(RMB)), an increase of approximately 204.17% over 2021
due to a significant decrease in revenue. The Group is in

the process of achieving its aforementioned target and

will continue to promote measures to reduce GHG

emissions in the future.

Summary of GHG emissions performance:

BEm (48)

BERE PR ()

=

RAFE  AEBNBAER
BHERZENARBOBE &L
ik, BEWACARE) (2021
F 024 ALt BEW
AARE)) » BRRAKIER
A+ HE 2021 FF 1B AN 49 204.17% ©
AEBEEER Lt BIE/MB
BEFR  WHERRREEHE
BB E REEHE A I o

BEREBHMRIRGE

Indicator’ Unit 2022 2021
B B 2022 2021 %
Direct GHG Emissions (Scope 1) tCO.e 9.79 9.84
BERAEREBHR(EBE1) WS LiRE S
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 39.07 30.52
EEAEREBHMN(HE2) WE S LiE 2
Other Indirect Emissions (Scope 3) tCO.e 1.40 1.14
At Rl HE e (B8 [E 3) WE S LiRE 2
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) tCO,e 50.26 41.50
BERBHREE (EE1 - 2K3) WMo_EtnEE
Total GHG Emissions Intensity? tCO e/million 0.73 0.24

BEREHRAERE?

revenue (RMB)
MW — AL B
EE BBl
(ARHE)

2022 FFR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

94

GHG Emissions (Continued)

Note(s):

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange, the
“Notice on the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse
Gas Emission Reporting by Power Generation Industry
for 2023-2025" published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC, and the “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report,
2014 (AR5).

During the Year, the Group’s revenue recorded
approximately RMB69.0 million (2021: approximately
RMB175.4 million). This data is also used for calculating
other intensity data.
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Discharges into Water

Due to the Group’s business nature, discharges into
water are insignificant. Since the sewage discharged by
the Group will be disposed of through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered the
amount of sewage discharged. As the sewage of the
entire office building was collected by the property
management company in a centralised manner, specific
data could not be obtained.

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
of the 4Rs, namely, “reduce, reuse, recycle, and replace”,
and strives to manage and handle all wastes produced
in its business activities properly. The Group's waste
management practice has complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations.

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group mainly focuses on providing integrated
multimedia advertising and marketing solution services,
the Group does not directly produce a material amount
of hazardous waste during its operation. Despite the
fact that no material amount of hazardous waste was
generated by the Group during the Year, the Group has
established guidelines to govern the management and
disposal of hazardous waste. In case there is any
hazardous waste produced, the Group must engage a
qualified chemical waste collector to handle such waste
and comply with the relevant environmental rules and
regulations.

A.
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1. BER ()
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE - HERERRE (H)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1l.

96

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste generated by an office-based
operation was mainly office paper. During the Year, the
Group did not produce a disproportional amount of
waste. Meanwhile, to minimise the environmental
impacts from non-hazardous waste generated from its
business operations, the Group has set a target in 2021
to reduce non-hazardous waste intensity (kg/million
revenue (RMB)) gradually by 2026 using 2021 as the
baseline year. To achieve this target, the Group
continues to place great effort into educating its
employees on the importance of reducing waste
production and has adopted the following
environmentally friendly initiatives to enhance its
performance:

use duplex printing, recycle papers, and use
electronic means to reduce paper usage;
print or photocopy only the pages needed;

reuse office stationery, such as envelopes and
folders;

encourage employees to recycle equipment such
as computers and communication devices;

utilise electronic means for daily office
communication;

implement waste classification according to
relevant local waste management regulations; and

reuse materials for public relations activities.
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

During the Year, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste
intensity was approximately 4.23 kg/million revenue
(RMB) (2021: approximately 1.36 kg/million revenue
(RMB)), an increase of approximately 211.03% over 2021
due to a significant decrease in revenue. The Group is in
the process of achieving its aforementioned target and
will continue to promote initiatives to reduce waste
production in the future.

RE - HERERRE ()

A. RIE ()
Al BER) ()
BERYEE (&)
BEEEREYETE (B)

RAFE  AEENBEEERE
BYHEREE N B423 AT/ A
BRACARE) 20214F : 4
B2/ BERACAR
B)) - AR AKRIER A - L
2021 FHE 14T 211.03% ° ANEE
FEER TMEENBEE
AR 0 R T 2R 4 A HE R D
BEZEYNE EMFEHE ©

Summary of non-hazardous waste discharge EERZEVHERERIAHBE -
performance:
Non-hazardous Waste Type Unit 2022 2021
BEBRRVER B 2022 F 2021 %
Paper kg 292.03 238.52
HRaR NI
Total Non-hazardous Waste kg 292.03 238.52
%%gﬁmﬂ \% /L\ﬁ
Total Non-hazardous Waste Intensity kg/million 4,23 1.36

revenue (RMB)
BEREVRERE D/ BBRE

(AE®)
A2. Use of Resources A2. BRERA

As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group upholds and
promotes the effective use of resources. The Group actively
promotes green office practices and minimises the
environmental impacts of the Group. The Group also
encourages its employees to use their best endeavours to
reduce the use of resources, with a view to contributing to
the community and the environment. The Group has
adopted relevant policies to govern the use of electricity
and water, and will keep monitoring the potential
environmental impacts of its business operations.

ER—RABHEEEND
X AKERFMEEERE
RER - AEBRBIRERE
MAEBE YHFEERIAE
BHRENTE - NEBIIE
BREEZESAZ ORI ERE
A AERERRELEM -
AEBECRMEABIRAEE
IKEMEM  WHEERERE
EGEENBERERE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

98

Energy Consumption

The energy consumed by the Group was mainly
electricity consumption for the operations and petrol
consumption for transportation.

Related policies and initiatives on energy conservation
have been developed to show the Group's concern for
energy efficiency. Striving to conserve energy in the
workplace, the Group has set a target in 2021 to reduce
the energy consumption intensity (MWh/million
revenue (RMB)) gradually by 2026 using 2021 as the
baseline year. In order to achieve this target, all
employees are required to implement the adopted
policies and measures for energy utilisation. The relevant
specific measures are as follows:

consider energy-efficient products when
procuring and replacing equipment, such as
replacing incandescent lighting with LED lighting;

turn off electrical appliances or switch them to
standby mode when they are not in use, thus
reducing the amount of electricity used;

turn off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning,
and electrical appliances before leaving the office;
strictly limit the use of air conditioners to avoid
electricity waste; and

improve equipment maintenance and overhaul,

and keep all electronic equipment in best
condition for efficient electricity use.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - ERERBRE (B)

A. RIE(E)
A2. ERERA (&)

Energy Consumption (Continued)

The Group also actively promotes an energy-efficient
office by committing to organising environmental
protection activities for employees every year to raise
their environmental awareness on responsible energy
consumption. Under the effects of COVID-19, the Group
has not organized any environmental protection
activities for employees this year. The Group will resume
organising environmental protection activities for
employees next year.

During the Year, the Group's total energy consumption
intensity was approximately 1.51 MWh/million revenue
(RMB) (2021: approximately 0.55 MWh/million revenue
(RMB)), an increase of approximately 174.55% over 2021
due to a significant decrease in revenue. The Group is in
the process of achieving its aforementioned target and
will continue to raise employee awareness on
responsible energy consumption in the future.

Summary of energy consumption performance:

RETFUHAE ()

~
\

REBNTEREERELIR
W AE  EBSFRIEE
WIRIREE - MﬁﬂﬁﬁMﬁ
EEE%%%%?M%%%
% EFEMAEENEE

$%l$¢&ﬁﬁﬁam
ﬁ&ﬁ%%%@o$%l%&
RAFMIEER IS TIRIRED) -

Jlm

E

RARFEE  REBMRERERE
BEZRENRISIKERE /A
BWAARE) (20214 : 4
055 KB,/ BEBKRACAR
#)) - AR WA KRR A

2021 FFHE 049 174.55% o AN 52 &
FEEH FMBENBAEE
o WIERRIREEIRFA RS
HasETeRHERENES -

RERHRREME

Type of Energy Unit 2022 2021
RERE S B 2022 F 2021 F
Direct Energy MWh 35.69 35.88
Petrol
BHERRER JKFLIs
o
Indirect Energy MWh 6851 59.98
Electricity
B L ROE % IR LB
B
Total Energy Consumption MWh 104.20 95.86
BERHERAE K E B
Total Energy Consumption Intensity MWh/million 1.51 0.55

revenue (RMB)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

100

Water Consumption

Water usage was limited to water used by employees at
the office. Water consumption data was not available
since water usage was covered in the tenancy fee.

The target for water efficiency is not presented, as data
gathering is not applicable. The Group nevertheless
encourages all employees to develop the habit of
conscious water conservation. The Group has been
enhancing its water conservation promotion.
Environmental messages are posted in the pantry and
washrooms to remind employees to save water. The
employees’ water conservation awareness has increased
with the above water-saving measures.

Due to the Group's business nature, the Group did not
encounter any problems in sourcing water that was fit
for purpose.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the Group's business nature, the Group does not
produce any final products nor does it have any
industrial facilities. Therefore, the Group does not use a
significant amount of packaging material in its daily
operations.
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group focuses on the business impacts it has on
the environment and natural resources and pursues the
best practices for environmental protection. In addition
to complying with related environmental laws and
regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, the Group has
integrated the concept of environmental protection
and natural resource conservation into its internal
management and daily operations in order to achieve
the aim of environmental sustainability. The group has
established relevant policies to identify the
environmental factors that can be controlled and may
have a significant impact on the Group's activities,
products or services.

Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance work
efficiency. The Group maintains office discipline and
environmental hygiene, and ensures private office space
and common areas are neat and tidy. The Group also
encourages its employees to reduce unnecessary use of
electricity, water, and paper whenever possible,
minimizing the Group’s consumption of natural
resources. The Group’s employees monitor the
conditions of the workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems and
potential risks in time so as to maintain a sound working
environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A4. Climate Change

102

Extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, while tackling climate change has become a
global consensus. The Group has realised that climate
change will affect its business operations. Therefore, the
Group has established a robust set of policies and
procedures to identify, monitor, and manage climate-
related issues. During the Year, the Group has initiated a
climate change assessment to identify and mitigate the
potential risks that may arise from its business
operations. These risks mainly stem from the following
dimensions:

Transition Risks

It is expected that there will be more stringent climate
legislation and regulations to support the global vision
for decarbonisation. If the Group fails to comply with
the laws and regulations applicable to its businesses
from time to time, its business operations may be
affected. Negative publicity may also arise due to failure
to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. The company’s related capital investment and
compliance costs thus increase. In response to the
policy and legal risks as well as the reputational risks, the
Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends,
policies, and regulations relevant to climate and is
prepared to alert the top management where necessary
to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines, or
reputational risks due to delayed response.
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A4. Climate Change (Continued)

Transition Risks (Continued)

On the other hand, the Group’s success depends on its
ability to maintain relationships with its existing
customers and attract new ones. If the Group cannot
adapt and respond timely and effectively to the
emerging market expectations for climate change
actions, it may not be able to compete with its peers in
the market. In light of that, the Group has gradually
incorporated sustainability into its business operations
by taking various measures aimed at reducing its GHG
emissions and impact on the environment.

Physical Risks

Increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events, such as heavy rains and typhoons, can disrupt
operations by damaging the power grid and
communication infrastructures, hampering and injuring
employees on their way to or during work. These events
could disrupt supply chains, interrupt business
operations, and damage the Group's assets. As a
countermeasure, the group identifies these risks,
prioritises those with the most severe consequences for
taking precautionary measures first, and investigates
how a change in business model might be possible to
mitigate or avoid these severe impacts on business
operations.

A.

RE - HERERRE ()

®E (&)

A4. RIRE1E (&)

BRI E R ()

= E - REBHKIDEUR
RERBEBEEFPHFAELR
SIFEFHEEN © AR EE
VA N B 30 A8 R80H0 5 e % [0 fE T
SHRIRZ(CAARIMITEIN R
MIEH - AAj IR IS F
XBF ol AKRECDEB
KREREEERELERESH
MM EHRIRFTER T E0E

i BSEAREERARE
s -
EHWEAR

B9 N e [ 5 15 3k oK SRR DN AR
ENEBE BREEMEAMR
i~ RE L PGk TR
BARIEE REEZE - HER
LEBNTE - ZFFMHAH
Bt TERXBEE U
BEAKEEE - FRYER
i AEEERZERRE - X
BERETHKKEELERNAE
% IRATERENA 5 AL
R R0 88 8 a0 {a] AR EE Bk
BRAFHEREERKAE

=45
E/?;E(’

2022 FEH REAXABEBEEFRLT | 103



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

SOCIAL

B1. Employment

104

Human resources serve as the foundation for the
continuous development of the Group. The Group's
success highly depends on its ability to attract, cultivate,
and retain employees. The Group adheres to a people-
oriented approach and standardises labour employment
management to respect and protect the legitimate
interests of every employee. At the same time, the
Group strives to ensure the welfare and well-being of its
employees, protect their labour rights, and stimulate
their enthusiasm and creativity.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with labour laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and the Regulations
on Work-Related Injury Insurance of the People’s
Republic of China.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 59 (as
at 31 December 2021: 78) full-time employees, all of
whom were located in the PRC. The distribution of
employees by gender, age group, and employee
category was as follows:
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SOCIAL (Continued)
B1. Employment (Continued)

2022
2022 &

By Gender
BRI & 5

B &M

Male Female

By Age Group
BERER 8D

u JOFRSLAT 31-405%
Age 30 or below Age 31-40
o 41-505% o S1BREUAE
Age 41-50 Age 51 or above
By Employee Category
RESERED

3
(508%)

SRERE EIRE —fRET
Senior Management Management General Staff

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE - HERERRE ()

B. #& (&)
B1. {E{E (&)

2021
20214

By Gender
te-qezlE-lbs)

Bt g

| -
Male Female

By Age Group
BRERARE S

9
(11.54%),

34
(43.59%)

0
— (0.00%)

u S0 31-405%
Age 30 or below Age 31-40

o 41-505% o STERBUAE
Age 41-50 Age 51 or above

By Employee Category
RESELE D

5
41%

BRERE B , AT
Senior Management Management General Staff
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

106

Due to the Group's business nature, there is a high
turnover of staff in the live-streaming e-commerce
business, and the Group has carried out staff
optimization this year in accordance with its business
development and market conditions. During the Year,
the Group’s overall turnover rate® was approximately
142.37% (2021: approximately 11.54%). The employee
turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical

B. & (&)
B1. EfE (&)

AR AEENEBHEE  BF
EEREBKMNABERDEER
RN MAEBESFRREESE
KERAEERMBIREBR #
TABEBLE -REAFE AE
B A BB R R4 R 14237%
(20215 : #911.54%) ° RMERI ~
FhARI M IEE DA EEB R

region was as follows: LN

Categories® 2022 2021
Hhle 2022 20215
Gender 4 Bl

Male Bt 171.43% 8.33%
Female 7 116.13% 14.29%
Age Group RERER B2

Age 30 or below 30BREA T 210.34% 14.29%
Age 31-40 31 E2405% 69.57% 11.76%
Age 41-50 41 E5073% 100.00% -
Age 51 or above 5188 A - -
Geographical Region &b EE 5

The PRC s 142.37% 11.54%
Note(s): Mt -

The overall employee turnover rate is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment
during the reporting period by the number of
employees at the end of the reporting period
(employees who left the Group during probation period
are not included).

The employee turnover rate by specific category is
calculated by dividing the number of employees in the
specified category leaving employment during the
reporting period by the number of employees in the
specified category at the end of the reporting period
(employees who left the Group during probation period
are not included).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

Employment Practices
Recruitment, Promotion, and Dismissal

The Group has formulated a series of personnel
management policies to guide employees in actively
integrating personal pursuits into the long-term
development of the Group.

The Group strives to nurture potential candidates who
show passion for launching a career in the advertising
industry. Hence, the Group has established a robust,
transparent, and fair recruitment process in accordance
with its “Recruitment Management System” to offer
open and equal opportunities free of gender, race,
family status, and age discrimination in order to recruit
the best talents.

To retain talent, the Group offers promotion and
development opportunities for outperforming
employees through an open and fair assessment system
5o as to explore their potential capabilities, develop their
careers and meet the Group’s needs for sustainable
development. Formulating the “Performance Appraisal
Management Approach”, the Group has developed a
set of criteria and reasonable KPIs for selecting
outstanding employees in the annual performance
appraisal. The promotion of employees will be evaluated
according to the appraisal results.

Besides, the Group strictly prohibits any kinds of unfair
or unreasonable dismissals to protect the employee’s
rights. Any termination of the employment contract is
based on reasonable, lawful grounds and internal
policies.
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B1. Employment (Continued)
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Employment Practices (Continued)
Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair and reasonable
remuneration system that offers a competitive
remuneration package to employees by referencing
market benchmarks in order to attract high-calibre
candidates. The standard remuneration package for
employees includes a base salary, a performance bonus,
overtime pay, a position subsidy and related subsidies,
and other bonuses. Employees’ remuneration is
determined based on their responsibilities,
qualifications, performance, experience, and seniority.
Employees are also offered other benefits, such as
medical insurance, and granted leaves such as maternity
leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, and
bereavement leave. The remuneration policy and the
package of employees are periodically reviewed.

The Group signs and executes labour contracts with all
employees in the PRC in accordance with the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China. In
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group participates in a defined
contribution basic pension insurance in the social
insurance system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group's PRC subsidiary
contributes funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the
local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees. These benefits are
paid according to relevant local regulations, which are
paid monthly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

Employment Practices (Continued)
Remuneration and Benefits (Continued)

The Group also provides different benefits, such as
birthday presents, tea breaks, and employee discounts
at different restaurants, to boost the sense of belonging
of its employees.

In addition, the compensation for key executives of the
Group is reviewed by the Company’s remuneration
committee, which is based on the Group’s performance
and the executives’ respective contributions to the
Group. The remuneration of the Board and members of
senior management is determined based on their
duties, responsibilities, experience, skills, time
commitment, as well as the Group's performance.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities, and Anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group
recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforce
and is committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in which
all can thrive. The Group is dedicated to providing equal
opportunity in all aspects of employment and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture that is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual on the basis of
race, religion, colour, gender, physical or mental
disability, age, place of origin, marital status, and sexual
orientation.
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Employment (Continued)
Employment Practices (Continued)
Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group has formulated the “Employee Attendance
System” for determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees in accordance with local
employment laws and regulations. The Group has
implemented a five-day work scheme and provides
employees with statutory holidays and welfare holidays.
In addition, employees are entitled to additional annual
leave based on the cumulative years of employment in
the Group.

The Group encourages employees to maintain a work-
life balance and avoid unnecessary overtime. The Group
provides overtime allowances and compensatory rest
arrangements for employees.

Health and Safety

The Group highly prioritises the health and safety of its
employees. The Group commits to providing employees
with a healthy, safe, and comfortable working
environment and strives to eliminate potential health
and safety hazards at the workplace. Although the
health and safety measures that are applicable to an
office-based business operation are limited, the Group is
committed to safeguarding the well-being of all
employees. The Group formulated the “Office
Management Regulation” to reduce employee-related
safety risks and enhance employees’ occupational
health awareness.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Health and Safety (Continued)

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related
laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases, and the Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China.

During the Year, there were no work-related injuries or
lost days due to work-related injuries reported in the
Group. In addition, there had been no work-related
fatalities in any of the past three years, including the
Year.

Workplace Health and Safety

As stated in the "Office Management Regulations”
formulated by the Group, all employees are obligated to
promote health and safety at the workplace. For
instance, employees are reminded to use office
equipment safely and maintain a smoke-free office.

Due to employees’ prolonged use of computers, the
Group has provided employees with desks of suitable
height and task chairs of adjustable height and
encourages them to pay attention to their sitting
posture, take breaks, and do stretching exercises
regularly, thus reducing occupational strain. Employees
are also reminded to take safety precautions and use
suitable tools when lifting heavy goods or reaching
items at a height.
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Workplace Health and Safety (Continued)

As a precautionary measure against potential
environmental hazards, special working arrangements
during typhoons and rainstorms have been specified by
the Group to avoid any confusion that might lead to
safety issues. The Group has also taken precautions
against fire hazards, where fire extinguishers are
strategically placed and fire exits are free from
obstruction. At the same time, the Group has also
placed first-aid boxes around the premises for both daily
and emergency uses.

As the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic continues,
the Group has remained committed to a series of
precautionary measures in accordance with guidelines
from governments at all levels to ensure the health and
safety of its employees. In addition to requiring
employees to check and record their temperatures and
visit a doctor immediately whenever feeling unwell, the
Group has reminded its employees of the importance of
maintaining good personal hygiene by washing hands
frequently with soap. The Group has also provided
surgical masks to employees whenever necessary.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3. Development and Training

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - ERERBRE (B)

B. & (&)
B3. R KIEI

Training Management

Training and continuous development are essential for
the Group's staff to keep abreast of the ever-changing
trends in the industry. Therefore, the Group takes a
proactive approach to providing employees with
opportunities to advance their careers. The Group
provides relevant on-the-job training for each employee
to facilitate their business skills. Through various training
programmes, employees are able to strengthen their
business-related professional knowledge and
management skills. The Group has established the
“Training Management System” to standardise the
management of employees’ training. The Group also
encourages its employees to apply for internal and
external training courses to refresh their prior
knowledge.

During the Year, approximately 17.48%° (2021:
approximately 25.29%) of its employees have received
training related to sales strategies and social media
operations, with an average training time of
approximately 4.56 hours® (2021: approximately 1.11
hours). The breakdown of percentage of employees
trained and average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category was as
follows:
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2022 2021
2022 2021 %
Percentage of Average Percentage Average
Trained Training of Trained Training
Employees(%)”  Hours (Hours)® Employees(%)”  Hours (Hours)?
ZiEE POZIRH RiEE  THZIEH
B2 (%) (/NEg)® B2 (%) (/ME)®
Gender Male 11.84 1.1 3590 046
sl Elba) L
Female 23.88 847 16.67 1.65
g
Employee Category Senior Management 80.00 1330 60.00 0.60
RERERNED BRERE
Management - - 60.00 1.00
EEE
General Staff 16.03 447 20.78 1.16
—RET
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Training Management (Continued)

Note(s):

5. The percentage of trained employees is calculated by
dividing the total number of employees who took part
in training during the reporting period by the total
number of employees at the end of the reporting
period, including existing and resigned employees.

6. The average training hours per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during
the reporting period by the total number of employees
at the end of the reporting period, including existing
and resigned employees.

7. The percentage of trained employees by category is
calculated by dividing the number of employees in the
specified category who took part in training during the
reporting period by the total number of employees in
the specified category at the end of the reporting
period, including existing and resigned employees.

8. The average training hours by category is calculated by
dividing the number of training hours for employees in
the specified category during the reporting period by
the number of employees in the specified category at
the end of the reporting period, including existing and
resigned employees.

During the Year, of the employees who participated in
the aforementioned training, approximately 36.00%
were male and approximately 64.00% were female;
approximately 16.00% were senior management, and
approximately 84.00% were general staff.

For new employees, the human resources department
will provide orientation training in relation to the
Group's policies and guidelines. The head and members
of the department will be responsible for providing on-
the-job training to new employees. The Group's
“Management System Compilation”, which covers
administration, human resources, finance, and legal
matters, is issued to employees.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3. Development and Training (Continued)

Training Management (Continued)

On the subject of employees’ career prospects, if
vacancies or new positions are available, the Group shall
consider internal promotion or transfer, thus
encouraging the upward mobility of employees.

As mentioned in the section headed "Recruitment,
Promotion, and Dismissal” under aspect B1, the Group
regularly assesses employees’ performance. The Group
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the training
courses conducted by the management to improve the
quality of its training system. For those employees
whose performance has yet to reach a satisfactory level,
the Group shall provide training tailored to strengthen
their skills and knowledge.

In order to implement the Group’s development
strategy, promote corporate culture, create a good
corporate atmosphere, and cultivate and shape the
sense of honour and mission of all employees, the
Group has selected outstanding employees during the
Year. The selected outstanding employees were
awarded preferential promotion opportunities and
bonuses.

Regarding the development and training of the Group's
Directors, the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively
perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Every newly appointed member has received a
formal, comprehensive, and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly prohibits the recruitment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group has established a
well-defined recruitment process in accordance with its
“Recruitment Management System” that examines the
background of candidates and a formal reporting
procedure for handling any exceptions. During the
recruitment process, the age of the applicant is verified
against the identity documents of the applicant in order
to prevent hiring any employees who are below legal
working age. In addition, the Group conducts regular
reviews and inspections to prevent any child labour or
forced labour in operation. Once the Group discovers
any case that fails to conform to the relevant labour
laws, regulations, or standards, the relevant employment
contract will be immediately terminated.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations that would have a
significant impact on the Group, including but not
limited to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour of the People’s Republic of China.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. & (&)

B5. Supply Chain Management B5. {tEHEERE

In the Group’s supply chain, environmental and social
risk management are highly valued. For effective
monitoring of procurement procedures and cost control
and to enhance management transparency in
procurement, the Group has formulated a stringent and
standardised “Supplier Management System” and
“Supplier Selection Procedure”. During the procurement
process, as detailed in the Group’s "Procurement
Management System”, the procurement manager of the
Group is responsible for selecting and reviewing
suppliers. Apart from considering the offered price, the
Group also takes into account the supplier’s
background, qualifications, management model, service
quality, financial health status, experience in similar
services, contract fulfilment, social and environmental
compliance, and follow-up services.

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to managing its supply chain
in a socially and environmentally responsible manner
and sourcing from approved suppliers who meet the
Group's requirements. Relevant policies and measures
are established to monitor the quality of the Group'’s
suppliers as well as their environmental and ethical
performance.
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B5. Supply Chain Management (Continued)

118

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
(Continued)

To reduce its social and environmental risks along the
supply chain, the Group periodically evaluates and
monitors the performance of its suppliers to ensure
their compliance with laws and regulations relating to
environmental and social policies, service standards,
contract conditions, and quality provisions. Any
noncompliance with relevant environmental and social
laws and regulations discovered by the designated
personnel from the Group during the assessment will
be promptly reported to the management. Corrective
action plan will be carried out to remediate the
identified risk in a timely manner.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to the
environmental awareness of its suppliers and promotes
sound environmental performance and governance
practices amongst its business partners and suppliers.
The Group encourages its business partners and
suppliers to consider the risks posed to their operations
by climate change and actively mitigate their
environmental impacts during supplier management
meetings and events. During the selection process, to
promote improvements in environmental performance,
suppliers are encouraged to consider and manage their
environmental and social issues in their operations for
priority consideration. The Group maintains close
communication with suppliers, understands their supply
and services, resolves related supply and service issues,
and makes corresponding improvement measures. The
Group also shares sustainable operating practices and
disseminates environmental concepts, including the
latest knowledge on good employment and
environmental practices.
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B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
(Continued)

During the Year, the Group had a total of 353 suppliers
(2021: 167 suppliers), all of which were located in the
PRC. All of them were engaged and evaluated under the
aforementioned practices.

Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of its products
with its internal control process. The Group also
maintains ongoing communication with customers to
understand their demands and expectations and
improve its service quality by learning their levels of
satisfaction.

During the Year, in recognition of its outstanding service
quality, the Group has won several awards in ADMEN
Awards and ROI Festival, was jointly awarded the
honorary title of “South China E-commerce Gold Label
Award — Most Growing Enterprise Award” by
Guangzhou Municipal Commerce Bureau and
Guangzhou Electronic Commerce Industry Association,
and also elected as Guangzhou Tianhe District Folk
Artists Association (Vice President Company), Vice
President Company of Guangzhou E-commerce Industry
Association and member of Guangdong Modern Service
Federation.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety, advertising, labelling,
and privacy matters relating to products and services
and methods of redress that would have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests, the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and the Patent Law of
the People’s Republic of China.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

120

Moreover, during the Year, there were not any products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

Protection of IP Rights

Preventing potential copyright violations is critical in the
advertising industry. Before inserting a copyrighted
image on the Group's product, the Group ensures that
consent from the relevant copyright holder has been
obtained.

Additionally, the Group respects IP rights and is
therefore committed to purchasing genuine
copyrighted products such as computer software and
firewalls. Fundamental guidelines are also provided to
the employees to ensure they do not infringe upon any
IP rights such as trademarks and copyrights. Disciplinary
or legal actions may be taken against the employee
should he/she be found to be in breach of such rights.

Customer Services

Feedback from customers is welcomed as it is the key to
enhancing the Group's service. Procedures for handling
feedback have been set up. Should the Group receive
any complaints, the Group will act immediately to
resolve the issue with effective corrective actions. Due
to the limitations of the Group’s business, the Group
could not recall the services provided. During the Year,
the Group’s did not receive any material written product
or service-related complaints.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group recognises that protecting customers’
privacy is the key to its success, and as such, it is always
the Group's top priority. The Group's "Office
Management Regulations”, “Visitor Management
Regulations”, “Confidentiality Agreements” and “Brand
Management Regulations” have been implemented to
govern the collection, usage, and disclosure of personal
data given to the Group from individuals.

Moreover, the Group seeks to protect customers’
information and accounts by adopting “Information
System Management System”, “Data Backup
Management System”, “Live Streaming E-commerce
Center Information Management Rules” and the
following data security measures such as:

promptly and regularly update the operating
system and anti-virus software, thus fixing security
vulnerabilities;

regularly backup employees’ computers and
servers, thereby avoiding possible data loss caused
by hardware or software failures, including data
related to IP rights and consumer data and privacy;

promptly notify management and conduct
inspections based on relevant protocols when
computers or servers show signs of anomalies, so
as to minimise potential risks of data leakage;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)
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Customer Privacy Protection (Continued)

conduct meetings with clients and visitors in the
conference room instead of the open area in the
office to avoid potential leaks of client data or

other private information;

prohibit the disclosure of the Group's information
relating to strategies, research, technologies,
financial matters, clients, and other confidential
information to unrelated third parties or

employees;

prohibit employees from reading each other’s
working information, computer, or personal items

without consent;

grant permission before entering the finance
office or server room with confidential

information;

require employees to keep information and data
related to IP rights and consumer data and privacy

confidential after resignation; and

configure proper networking and server
permissions to prevent unauthorised access to

customer data and private information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Advertising and Labelling

The Group emphasises the importance of appropriate
advertising and compliance with requirements relating
to media advertisements. The Group has formulated the
“Sales Management Practices” to ensure that the
information on its advertisements and labels does not
contain false, misleading, or incomplete information
and statements in order to protect the interests of
consumers from being deteriorated by improper
advertisement and label descriptions. The Group’s
advertisements will be monitored by CSM Media
Research, the PRC's largest market research institution,
to ensure their effectiveness.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to building a clean and healthy
corporate system while combating corruption and
other improper business practices. The Group has
adopted relevant policies, including the “Insider
Information Management System” and “Conflict of
Interest Management System”, that outline relevant
procedures to guide employees in preventing possible
violations of bribery, corruption and conflicts of interest.
The Group specifically stipulates that employees must
discharge their duties with loyalty and integrity, and
shall not abuse their positions to seek any improper
interests.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to the Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B7. Anti-corruption (Continued)

124

The Group has zero tolerance for any bribery, corruption,
or other behaviour violating work ethics. The Group has
formulated the “Professional Ethics and Anti-Fraud Code
of Conduct”. Employees are expected to fulfil their
duties with integrity and to cease engaging in any
activities that involve bribery, extortion, fraud, or money
laundering.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established the “Complaints and Whistle-
blowing System”. The Group encourages all employees
to report on any possible improprieties, misconducts,
malpractices, or irregularities. If an employee discovers
any possible improprieties, misconducts, malpractices
or irregularities within the Group, he/she can report it to
the administrative department or his/her senior. If the
employee is not satisfied with the response or does not
want the complaint handled by the administrative
department or his/her supervisor, he/she can report it
directly to the general manager. Reports and complaints
received will be handled in a prompt and fair manner.
The Group intends to protect the whistle-blower from
common concerns such as confidentiality and potential
retaliation. Therefore, the employee who reports in
good faith under the whistle-blowing mechanism can
be assured of protection against unfair dismissal or
victimisation, even if the reports are subsequently
proved to be unsubstantiated.

If any corruption, bribery, blackmail, fraud, or money
laundering incidents are discovered, the Group will take
necessary legal actions to protect the rights and
interests of the Company and its stakeholders. There
were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees
during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SOCIAL (Continued)

B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption (Continued)
Anti-corruption Training

Recognising that anti-corruption training is essential for
creating a healthy corporate culture, the Group has
provided relevant training to Directors and employees,
including senior management. The Group has provided
all employees with anti-corruption and anti-fraud
guidelines to help them understand their roles and
responsibilities in anti-corruption as well as to cultivate
good professional ethics among its employees at all
levels. In addition, training materials embedded in a
comprehensive memorandum on Directors’
responsibilities, covering topics such as integrity and
discipline, confidentiality, and conflict of interest. are
distributed to the Directors. During the Year, 4 of the
Group's Directors (2021: 8) have received anti-corruption
training, with an average training time of approximately
1 hour.

Community Investment

In pursuit of business development, the Group spares
no effort in contributing to the community. The Group
is committed to contributing to society through
continuous participation in community services in order
to fulfil the Group's corporate social responsibility and
have established relevant community investment
policies to better manage the Group’s contribution to
the community. Meanwhile, the Group actively
expanded the resources of industry associations and
successfully joined organisations such as the Folk Artists
Association of Tianhe District in Guangzhou,
Zhongnanshan Medical Foundation of Guangdong,
China Advertising Association, etc. The Group also
hopes to foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
temporarily suspended the organisation of voluntary
activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

BERBEXZMARQA(RE - #
ERERBEESDARRS

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEKERE

Section/Declaration

i1

Governance Structure
EUOAE
Reporting Principles
e ¥z JR B

Reporting Boundary
e e 5 (=]

Introduction — The ESG Governance Structure
B —RE e REAEE

Reporting Framework

WEESR

Scope of Reporting

HEEHE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures
and KPIs

TEER - BE - —RKE

Description Section/Declaration

KRARENIEE i =30 13
Aspect A1: Emissions

EBmEA1 : B

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas

emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

—MRIXER BATZRIMORZEREBEN - FKE LT Y
WHEEs BENRBEEEVNEL
@ BR: K
(b) EBTFHETABEATZENMN
B KRR
KR o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Air Emissions, GHG

FASR AR SRR ALY

emissions data.
Management
e iR R M AR R BE R BUR -
FIZKEVBERR - BRI E TR
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - g RERH®E (B

BERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBREESDRERS (B

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
FTEEHE - - BE - —REE

RERENIEE i E5 885

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Emissions — GHG Emissions

FRSAE RUIEIR A1.2

KPIA1.3

BASAE N FEIR AL 3

KPI'A1.4

FASAE NS IR A1 4

KPIA1.5

BASAE FEIRALS

KPIA1.6

FASRAE NS IR A16

(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BiEZ (8E) ke (#E2) 8
EREEBER (ABBETE) K (ER)
BE (WMABEEEL - §IERMET

lorag
= o
Ean

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

EABZEEYES (LAEETHE ))SZ
(Em) BE (MABESEL -
AR

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEAREEEYEE CAETE) &
(WER) BE (A SESERN - 5
BRI E

Description of emissions target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
RPTEI OV BEME B iE R RESE
L B IR P ERER B P8R

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
HlRIEAENBEZEZYN L
VAR 8 2 P 5T SZ B RLRE B AR N A iE R
B B AR BRI P8R

BEPY) — IRERBHM

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEYER

Emissions — Waste Management

P — BEERYER

Emissions — GHG Emissions
BERY) — R EREEHEK

Emissions — Waste Management

B — BEEMEE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
FTEEHE  EH - —RESE
&Bﬁﬁn, X*EE

Description

g

BEEMEXSMERA AR
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

#

RIR

Section/Declaration

28 BY

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHEA2: EREHR

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw

Use of Resources

materials.
— R BRERER( aﬁ;@u/ KR EHA  EIRER
JRIE BBR
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy

FASR AR SN FE IR A2.1

KPI'A2.2

FASR AR SN FE IR A2.2

KPI'A2.3

PR AE SR IR A3

KPIA24

PR AE IR IR A24

KPI'A2.5

FASR AR SR IR A25

consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
RER SIS EE RS EEER
(20 - Raom) ERE(ATETR
st & >&?F (MANBESEEN &
BRI E
Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
i"%@kg)iiﬁf (WAFESEN -
BIEREE
Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
R P RT SZ BV BE IR A W am B AR S
ED|E L BIRPTERERE) 8 -
Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
A SKERGE A 7KR B R A R
AR PRI S K R B AR SR
B 5L B IR ERER B P8R o
Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
*”EJZuuﬁﬁFH BEM B S (LANEST
B)h(Em) sEESMEE -

Consumption

BRI — BERERE

Use of Resources — Water Consumption

BIRER — FKE

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BRI — BERERE

Use of Resources — Water Consumption

BIRER — FKE

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging
Material

BRER — BEMEER
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs
TEER  BEH - —REE
RBRERES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Description
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RE - HERERRE ()

BERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

28 BY

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 : RIERRXRER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.
BIREIT AERIE R RABRIEKE
AT EHBUR -

The Environment and Natural Resources

RIERRAREIR

KPI'A3.1

FASR AR SRR A3

Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

HR IS RS HIRIE R KRR E RN E
YVERBHENEEEEAFENTT

&) o

The Environment and Natural Resources
— Working Environment

RERRAER — LIERE

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EH A4 : RIS

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.

Climate Change

— AR ER BRIREHE R RATREEHEITAE RIRE L
R ENEXRIRBBEENBUR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change

BASR AR SRR A4

related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
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TURE Y,
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (B)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEXOFTHE ZFHEHKAXSFAERARCGEIE « #
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED EREARERSI)RNERS| ()
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  EFEH - —REE

RERERIER i 5589

Aspect B1: Employment

EmEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: Employment

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

— MR IR R B gE  BELES T EBRE
e B PERE 2k K
I A8 LA B ELAh A5 38 M AR &Y
@ BE: K
(b) B THHEITATEATXENE

B AR RIR B
HEKR] o

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment  Employment

type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region.

BSR4 AFEIR BT RIER - EIREAE (R R - ERE
Fhesnl MitES|I D EE AR -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender,age  Employment

group and geographical region.
RS E IR B1.2 RIER - FhdEr R EISHNEES EBRE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs
TEER  BEH - —REE
RBRERES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Description
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BERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

28 BY

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EHEB2: @FEHEZE

General Disclosure

— AR EE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

BERREZ2TERERRERES#®

RREMEEN

@ BEER: K

(b) BTFTHEHEBETABEATENMN
BRI

B E K

Health and Safety

BREZ 2

KPI'B2.1

BASARANIE 1R B2
KPI B2.2

RS 4B IRIZEB2.2
KPI B2.3

FAS AR N E1E B2.3

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.
BE=F (ERERFE)SFEIC
EOPN 9534

Lost days due to work injury.
HIBEEATIERS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

f PR B R 2 BB 2 245
ANAEBERITRER X

Health and Safety

(EIo e

Health and Safety

[EIER e

Health and Safety — Workplace Health
and Safety

BERLZE — THREMERERS
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
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Description

]

=

E}%H?A"EFEEWQ\T( R
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

28 B

#

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETEB3 : & KIE

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training

Development and Training — Training
Management

activities.

— AR EE FERTEEBITIEBRENMNEZ EREEI —BIEE
MR BE VR - fatsEFEE o

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Development and Training — Training

BASR 48 N FE1R B3.1

KPI'B3.2

FAS AR N E1R B3.2

gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle

management).
R REEER (NERERE
FREREE)EPNZIEETDLL

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.
IR e BB RIEI
AN TR -

- BREEBRT

Management

TR RIE — BRI

Development and Training — Training
Management

R R — B IEE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
FTEHE  BH - —RFE
RERENIEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Description

g

BEMEXSMERAECR
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

R - g RERH®E (B

RIE - 1

Section/Declaration

28 BY

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : & T%E

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.

Labour Standards — Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour

— MR ER B IEE Taiaa 85 T SGITHER —[pIrET MeaHs T
@ BE: K
(b) B THHETATEAZENME
BRI
B R} o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards — Prevention of Child

BASRARANIR IR B4
KPI B4.2

FASAE N FE1R B4.2

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

fa iR s RS E BB AR R E T
Ko sg i85 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

R IR E R IE N HR A RAE.,
FTERERHY 25 8% o

and Forced Labour

BTHA —IFET K&l T
Labour Standards — Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour

ST — UL E T RAHIST
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE - HERERRE (H)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs

TRER - BE - —RKE

KERERER

Description

]

=

BERBERZMARQA(RE - &
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

268 BY

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmBS : fAEEEE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

Supply Chain Management

—MRIXER EIRMEENIRE I SRBEE - HEEEE
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management —

RS2 48 I TZ BS. 1
KPI B5.2

BB IR IR B5.2

KPIB5.3

FAS AR N E1E B5.3

KPIB5.4

RSB IEIZEB5 4

region.

mumE D HEEEE -
Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

ft B RAH R B ED - mHER
TERELNHEREE - LAKIARA
MITRERTA -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

iR BB R E S FRE IR IR
it g R EH - ARAEEARITR
BERAE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and
monitored.

f e SRR R R (E 2 BIRIRE
oo M ARG EIE R - DA R ARBEBTT MBS
BIE °

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
HEHEEIR — AIRFEMHERER
Supply Chain Management —
Sustainable Supply Chain Management

HEREE — AREHrERERE

Supply Chain Management —
Sustainable Supply Chain Management

HEREE — AnEHtEEERE

Supply Chain Management —
Sustainable Supply Chain Management

HEREE — AREHERER
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
FTEHE  EBH - —RFEE
RERENIEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Description

g

BEMEXSMERAECR
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

R - g RERH®E (B

RIE - 1

Section/Declaration

28 B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHB6 : ERE(E

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility

— R R ﬁ@%krﬁmﬂ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ Ematt
2 BE BRELLEFEARER
FER
@ Eﬁ(ﬁ &
b)) TFTHETABEATZENIEH
ﬁ@&ﬁ%
HWEF -
KPI'B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Responsibility

BAS 48 X5 1R B6.1

KPI B6.2

RS 4B IR IZ B6.2

KPI B6.3

FASAE N FEIR B6.3

KPI B6.4
PR AR IR R BoA
KPI B6.5

RS 4E IR 1R B6.S

shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EENCEXEMERP AL 2 HE{E
FRIEHRMALKEADL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BB E m M RG IR R B AR
JEXITIE ©

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rig hts.

ﬁ R E R ARIE A B EE A NS
Jl| o

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.

B EmTREREREWRER
Descrrptron of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

i lH B & S RMRIE MALBEGR -
AR ARBRNTT R EEERTTA o

EmAE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services

Emad — 2P R%E

Product Responsibility — Protection of IP
Rights
EmEE — REMZERE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services, Advertising and Labelling
EmBEE —BPRYS  BERER
Product Responsibility — Customer
Privacy Protection

EmEE —EFPEBRLFRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE  #HERERRS (&

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
FEEHE -
&Bﬁﬁn, )&*EE

Bm - —RiEE

Description

]

=

E}%H?A"EFEEWQ\T( R
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

28 B

#

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

Anti-corruption

— AR R BRI ILIER 9% BEFROARE RES
Hy -
(@ BE:RK
b) ETHETABERFZENM
B AR N AR D
HE R
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption — Whistle-blowing

FASR A X FE1R B7.1

KPIB7.2

FAS A 515 B7.2

KPIB7.3

FAAE N FEIR BT .3

regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees during

the reporting period and the outcomes
of the cases.

ﬁ“lii&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁé?/\‘iﬁﬁ%%ﬂjji
MBS T AR MBI B R Av A

n\I:l% °

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.

ot #E i M B AR T - PANAARE

MITRERTA -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to Directors and staff.
ftmEEMEERENRESE
Al e

Mechanism

RES — BRI

Anti-corruption — Whistle-blowing
Mechanism

REF — EmkHl
Anti-corruption — Anti-corruption

Training
R&EF — REFEI
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - ERERBRE (B)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE §;§H¥A“ SHMERQATCGRE - &
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERERBERSI)ABESI(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EE%E E —RIXE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HEIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagementto  Community Investment
understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
— MR BRAUMEBERTREEMTME HEEE
FENBRAER SIS ERLET
T ) HR ©

KPI'B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BAS 4R AN FE1R BT FIEREE(MHE REFE - HERE
BIFFR @ X BF)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment
time) to the focus area.

BA S A5 IR BS.2 EEIBREMBMER(NeELF HEERE
) °
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R E RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Icon Culture Global Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Icon
Culture Global Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 147 to 235, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B R R

BARENER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RIEFH IR ZELIE - BBEETEEAR
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the IBHAHBEGATERRTZEENSE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These  IH o H IR T BB S M ERER L3I
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ZXRERBEREZZEE MBI 25%
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our ZEIEEFEXRER, -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

LN

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 180 to 182.
BRI A A T3 R FE 180 F 182 AR EETHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BHRENSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETT M EEZSEE

The principal activities of the Group are rendering
traditional offline media advertising, online media
advertising, public relations, marketing campaigns and
other services.
SEEZTIEERRRHEERETERES  #L
HEEREE N SHEESREMRE

Revenue from different advertising service projects have
different contract terms and revenue recognition
criteria. In addition, as the Group handles individual
transactions manually, there is an increased risk of that
error may be made in the recognition of revenue.
TRESRBIEB WA BB TREE L BRI
AMERIZLE o JtHN - AR EEBEAAFEEE R
2 - WAHERRS Al 58 LR BE R AV AR 3B A0 -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

HFIFHE WA RN BARFERATNSIA

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over recognition of revenue;

T ERANET B B U A SR AR B &Y BA B2 1A BT I Y
W®ET - BrefET AL

inspecting the Group’s contracts with customers on
a sample basis and discussing with the management
on the nature of each major type of services to
evaluate the Group's revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
MEREEEEETFPNGL  WHRERER
WEETEHRURBHOEE - U2 EBRITEAE
AR R ERHE B R B WA TEREBER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BARENSEE

BAEESTEEGE)
W A ERE ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNESNAEEZSEE

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because (i) revenue is a key performance
measure for the Group and a key driver of the gross
margin which increases the risk that revenue may be
manipulated to meet targets and expectations; and (ii)
different contract terms require different accounting
treatments and manual analysis which increases the risk
of errors in the recognition of revenue.

AP WATER BRI RRARETFR - REAR W
ARESEENBEREVEELENETNHEEESHE
= BN A R RER IR AL AEK B 1R R TR R
fﬁ D R (i) RAERIGERER AN RIE A

DT - B IR A R R A AR o
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reconciling revenue records as set out in the
management accounts, on a sample basis, to service
contracts, service confirmation notes, monitoring
reports, and bank-in slips;

MBS EIRR B IS M W R e RIS B 4
RISHERE - BERiE MIRITARRBEEITHAER

confirming with the Group's customers directly on
revenue records, balances of trade receivables,
summaries of service contracts signed between the
Group and its customers and the completion status
of the above service contracts as at the year end on
a sample basis;
MEEERNEEETFHERARZRE - E5H
YIRS  EEEEARTPEINRBES
WL R Bt BRI & KPS RAYTEBGIRR

assessing existence of the Group's advertising
services projects by matching services contents as
set out in the service contracts signed with the
customers to the media resources procurement
contracts signed with the suppliers on a sample
basis; and

ik Hﬁ%ﬁé‘fﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ%m,\ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂ&lﬁqﬂgﬁi
HERRITNEBERRBOETRY
EEREREERGEAREFE K

evaluating whether revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period by assessing whether
the advertising services revenue recognition
progress was consistent with the terms and
advertisement schedule in the service contracts on a
sample basis.

M EESREWARREESE BRBE
iﬁﬁ”}fi AN EERER B FAEREEER

HESAHRAR -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) HAREETEE(E)

g5 BRI E

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163 to 172.
BRI E AN T 15 RE 1632172 ARV EETEE °

The Key Audit Matter
BARENSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NMEREZEE

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial ~ Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade
statements, the Group has gross trade receivables receivables included the following:

amounting to approximately RMB136,381,000 as at 31  IHPIFFHEE ZE KRR IBRENETEFEEATS
December 2022. Impairment losses of RMB31,367,000 18 :

were recorded as at 31 December 2022.

BUNAR A MR 1S PTIFE - EEEMN 2022
FNRANEHWNEBESREUARBAETEHNAEARE
136,381,0007C ° 7A2022F 12 A31 Bk S R EE 1B
AR #31,367,0007T °

Management recognises a loss allowance for lifetime
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the trade receivables.
ERENE HEKFIENZ HIEHEEEIERERE
B -

Management measures the ECL allowance for credit-
impaired trade receivables individually based on the
future cash flows expected to be collected.
ERERBERPWERNRRRSREREERMER
SEWFIATT ERREEBERER -

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and the estimation of
loss allowance;

FHMEREEERES BN R ELET
EVRASE N BRE BRI AT - B EER L

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables aging report were classified within
the appropriate aging bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant
supporting documents;

FEHERRER - @8 E 5 R KGIERE ®
EHREERIE R EARRE AN ETHE - T
HEZERFIARERETNIEEREDEAE
HERRRERER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BIRT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
HRENSEE

BREESTEEGR)
B 5 BWRIERE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETOMEEZSEE

For trade receivables that are not credit-impaired, the
ECL allowance is measured using a provision matrix,
which involves the use of estimated loss rates for each
category of trade receivables which are grouped
according to shared credit risk characteristics. The
estimated loss rates take into account the ageing of
trade receivable balances, historical payment profiles,
the corresponding historical credit losses rate of the
Group’s customers, current market conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions, and with
reference to expected credit loss rates of comparable
companies at the end of each reporting period.
RUBEERENESHRYFIEMS - BHEEE
BREEABEBEME - BRI REARERL
REERRSEEENSEE S RIKFIENLETE
BE - AT EEXE RE 5 WAL R ARER -
EEERPHNBENRBERARBEATEEEE
T BRI MARRG BT - WEER &L
BARREREHRNFEHEEERE -

Such assessment involves a significant degree of
management judgement and estimation.

BRHE Y MEARE N EIE B B M AAET -

We identified assessing the impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the
assessment of loss allowances for trade receivables is
inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

BPSEE S ERERIBEREB RERESF
B REGFEEZREREGIENEERELRE LA
BIEMN YR2EREFELERAE - EAfmEm
HERIVBEEEEER R RER
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evaluating the future cash flows expected to be
collected for credit-impaired trade receivables;
A S BB E B 5 FE WK IE T8 B UER 89 K 2Rk

A E .
Iﬁi/ﬂbi ,

challenging management’s estimation of expected
credit losses, taking into consideration the aging of
the balances, credit terms, recent settlement
patterns, historical observed default rate and the
forecast of future economic conditions; and
ZREREKR  FEH  MHAERR  #B7F
BRENRIARREEMRATER  ERERE
HIEHEE BB &

identifying significant or long overdue trade
receivables by inspecting the trade receivable aging
report and challenging management’s assessment
of the recoverability of these balances, taking into
consideration the aging of the balances, credit
terms, recent settlement patterns, and current
market conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.
FiBREEHRRFIARRRS I ERNKEK
HaMEFRWHIR  WEREIEEBHZFHE
ERAT R - B ERESRNKRE (5
EH T EAE R B AT MR R AR R
SUTE A



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B R R

e MR R R E XA RS LN
HER

ERAREMEREERERT c HERE
BTSN FRANZEHER  ETEER
BUBRR LB PINZEE RS -

BPEREMBHRRNBRL TRERM
B BT EZEFEMERBERER
AR o

REGAHBRENBN TS - RAWE
EAMBEMAR - LRBESZ B
BHRTRGANBRRBETT AR
Mt Est e T REREMADE S EALS
S -

ERBPERTHNIE  REMRBRE
o E B FAEEAMERRL - RMFERE
ZEE - P T mLERE -

EERGAMBRRARENEE

EXARERERLEMASHEMNE
B TSRS R BB R ARG FEAR
ERBIELEE R AT ERNERAS MR
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= ©

ERHEGAVBHRRE  EFRGNEE
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REnGTER RIEFATHEEHE
BRIFIEE - P EEMERNER
TE -
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BREEFOHEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

BRBMRET RSB BRAARE
HEE (&)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBREK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(Z 2022 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2022 2021
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kiat ARET T AREFTT
Revenue g 3 68,969 175,360
Cost of sales FHE R AR (73,468) (144,792)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) EF (4,499) 30,568
Other revenue H bz 4 663 3,572
Other net loss H b 518558 (10) 4)
Selling expenses SHERY (4,231) (10,268)
Administrative expenses TTHRSZ (37,604) (15,805)
(Loss)/profit from operations T (FR),BR (45,681) 8,063
Finance costs 5 E A 5(a) (870) (443)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREBLAT (B51B), B 5 (46,551) 7,620
Income tax TS 6 6,791 (2,749)
(Loss)/profit for the year RATRER R REMN
attributable to equity FR(BR) &R
shareholders of the Company (39,760) 4,871
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB) & (F518), 2R (AR%)
Basic K 9 (0.22) 0.03
Diluted #E 9 (0.22) 0.03

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.

551552235 AWM B AR EMEmRN—ED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEREaKEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 2022 4 12 A 31 BILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR#EFIIR)

2022 2021
2022 & 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTET

(Loss)/profit for the year attributableto 7 T #E# IR RFE(L
equity shareholders of the Company Fr(HE) ER (39,760) 4,871

Other comprehensive income for the year £ Ay H 1 2 [ Ug 25

Exchange differences on translation of BETMEAARK
financial statements of entities not using ([AR¥ D IEAEEK
Renminbi ("RMB") as functional currency BB HRERA
MEH Z% (46) (39)
Other comprehensive income for the year FANHMEE R (46) (39)

Total comprehensive income for the year Z<2 B %5 IR RFEG
attributable to equity shareholders FAREZHEKZLE
of the Company (39,806) 4832

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.
155 235 AN AR T HRERH —8 D -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR R

As at 31 December 2022 74 2022 4 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMEFIIIR)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iaF ARET T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ MR MR 10 1,458 524
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 11 7,240 10,420
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIEEE 21(b) 8,724 1,820
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 13 965 1,107
Total non-current assets FRBEEAT 18,387 13,871
Current assets REEE
Contract cost B HIK AR 14 4,254
Trade and other receivables 25 RE A EWZTE 15 106,395 167,859
Restricted deposits with a bank FRfE—RERITHY
PR #1177 5K 7 7
Cash and cash equivalents HENIREEEBY 16 12,019 12,318
Total current assets REEELE 122,675 180,184
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 LHE AR 17 23,396 55,266
Contract liabilities B4 ’j% & 18 14,119 8,035
Bank loans IRITER 19 20,000 -
Lease liabilities FHE \E’\F 20 4,707 3,519
Current taxation BNHAFR 18 21(a) 2,707 7,825
Total currentliabilites =~ #m@&fes® 0 64,929 74645
Net current assets FEBEEERE 57,746 105,539

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.

F 1552 235 BB Z SV EHRERN—3 D
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBMR K

As at 31 December 2022 122022 12 A 31 B
(AARBFITR)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kiat ARET T AREFTT
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 20 3,682 7,153
Totalnon-currentliability = hn@&fes 00000 3682 7,153
Net assets EEZE 72,451 112,257
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital f& 7 22(b) 1,596 1,596
Reserves G 22(c) 70,855 110,661
Total equity RRAE 72,451 112,257

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2023.

KERETA2023F3 A 29 B E R IZET) 3 -

Liang Wei
2%
Director

EF

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(Z 2022 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMEFIIIR)

Retained

earnings/

Share Share Other Statutory Exchange  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve loss) Total

RERH/

R ROEE  EHRE  iERE  EXRER  (RiER) it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR AR®Tr ARMTR ARETR AR®TR  ARETn
Note22(b)  Note22(c)i) Note22(c)iv)  Note22(c)(ii) Note 22(c)liii)
MaE2am)  BE20) KE2206)  BEE2(6) B 22(c)ii)

Balanceat 1January2022 202251 818H
g 1,596 91,866 (11,907) 8,407 1 22,284 112,257

Changesinequity for2022: 202 FEHEH :

Loss forthe year ERER = = = = = (39,760) (39,760)
Other comprehensiveincome Bt 2 EME - - - - (46) - (46)
Total comprehensiveincome 2N B3 - - - - (46) (39,760) (39,806)

Balance at 31 December 2022 202212 531H
ftke 1,596 91,866 (11,907) 8,407 (35) (17,476) 72,451

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.
F155% 235 AN B Z FMBHmKRN—&D -

2022 FEH RAXABEBREEEFRAT | 151



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ 2022 % 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (LAAR¥EFIR)

Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium feserve feserve feserve eanings Total
ke BibEE  EbER  ARE EXEE  REE @t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

AREBTT  ARETT  ARETRE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note 22(b) Note 22c)i) ~ Note 22(c)iv) ~ Note 22(c)(ii) ~ Note 22(c)(ii)
BEnb)  WE200  BE20M  ME200 B2

Balanceat 1January2021 1202151818

Changesin equity for2021: 2021 F RS :

Profitfor the year ERgd - - - - - 4871 4871
Other comprehensiveincome Bt 2 E & - - - - (39) - (39)
Total comprehensive income 2 E W& 2% - - - - (39 4871 483

Appropriations tostatutoy  BRZAEHE
reserve (note 22(c)) (Wt 2200) - - - 8 - (729) -

Balance at 31 December 2021 2021% 128318
ke 159 91,866 (11.907) 8407 11 22284 112257

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.

1552235 AMMEBKRZEMBHREN—H7 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= IE%/)ILE'%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(Z 2022 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMEFIIIR)

2022 2021
2022 & 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftat ARBTRT AREBTT

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from

REED

LEFA)/ FiERE

operations 16(b) (11,035) 1,565
Income tax paid ERAEH 21(a) (5,231) (3,335)
Net cash used in operating RETBFTARSFERE

activities (16'_2__6_6_)_ ___________ (1770)
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from disposal of property, ~HEWE - HE LEE

plant and equipment Z TS 508 3 -
Proceed from disposal of HESREE TSR

financial assets - 2,728
Payment for purchase of property, — BEE W « B M &G

plant and equipment pANE N (251) (529)
Net cash (used in)/generated from R&EEZE (FTA), i

investing activities REFHE (248) 2,199

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ 2022 % 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (LAAR¥EFIR)

2022 2021
2022 & 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

[t it ARBTRT ARBTT

Financing activities b & E B
Capital element of lease rentals paid B NHEMR S HERILD 16(c) (2,869) (2,195)
Interest element of lease rentals paid Eﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬂfﬁ K B 5B 16(c) (445) (443)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFIEHIE 16(c) 20,000 -
Interests paid EfFE 16(c) (425) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BE ZE TS (FTH)
_financing activities REewE ... 120 (2638)
Net decrease in cash and cash HekRRESEEWRD

equivalents HE (253) (2,209)
Cash and cash equivalentsatthe FHHRERBEEEEY

beginning of the year 12,318 14,566
Effect of foreign exchangerate  JNEERS SN E

changes (46) (39)
Cash and cash equivalentsatthe FREELRHALSEEY

end of the year 16(a) 12,019 12,318

The notes on pages 155 to 235 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis. Despite the Group recorded
a loss of RMB39,760,000 and a net cash outflow of
RMB16,266,000 from operating activities for the year,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have necessary funds to finance its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements,
having regards to the following:

the Group expects to generate positive operating
cash flows for the next 12 months ending 31
December 2023;

Il.  the Group has the ability to renew or rollover of its
banking or other financing sources;

lll.  the ultimate controlling shareholder undertakes to
provide financial support to the Group as is
necessary to ensure its continuing operation for a
period of at least 12 months from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

156

statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand
except share data, which is the functional currency of
the major subsidiaries of the Group in mainland China.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report

1

TEEFBER(E)

(b)

MBBRmREE (F)

HAPBREAARE (AR
WDIR - AR AARERE
) T AL 8 (B B RLBR SN -
ARBRAEERPEAMLE
ZBERRNINEEEE -

BV MR AERNT 2
BERE R RAELE -

EEEERENTABEYHR
SEANMERRFGAFELE
HUBENERBUAREE &
{8~ WAR X H B & BURE S
PR B A E - EETAMERER -
% FE MR R R RIE A
ERBRREERBEAMERA
AENZREMEARELAN
HERBREEBHEEXKRA
HigENSEMEERRRE
) B TED (LB PIT F 1 B Ay R0 -
BERERAIBEARINZFERT

B S B R A (A A A
HERE - MREEFHE
RIRREEX—HRE - AER]
SHEZMEAER - HWRE
AHEMMARAEG A
& AEFLERTEEMR
REAFIRERR ©

FREERBRERMAEYHR
ERAFEHMEHREREE
RE B HIE - AR fEET T8
ERZNEZ KRN A
A BSIRHIEE2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this financial report. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

158

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(g)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Motor vehicles 4 years
Leasehold improvement Over the
remaining

lease terms

Office equipment and others 2-5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

160

Leased assets

Atinception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leased assets (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payment made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or losses if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

162

Leased assets (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract ("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group took advantage of the practical expedient not to
assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments in
profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted deposits with a bank,
trade and other receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets

164

(Continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over

which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

— Life time ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items

to which the ECL model applies.
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

166

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held). The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

168

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOC! (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— right-of-use assets; and

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

170

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit ("CGU")).
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Creditlosses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the period in which the reversals are
recognised.

(h) Contract Costs
Contract costs are the costs to fulfil a contract with a

customer which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment (see note 1(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESEHEEE)
(Continued)
(h) Contract Costs (Continued) (h) EHHA (&)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods or services
in the future; and are expected to be recovered. Costs
that relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which
are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

()

174

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(p)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1())).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note

1(p)(iii)).
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(g)(i)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

m

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(g)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

176

(ii) Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group participates in a defined
contribution basic pension insurance in the social
insurance system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group makes
contributions to basic pension insurance plans
based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension
insurance contributions are charged to profit or
loss as the related services are rendered by the
employees.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

178

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investment in a
subsidiary to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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TEEFBER (8)

(Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

180

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the provision of services and the sales of
goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax ("VAT") and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Integrated multimedia advertising services

Revenue from integrated multimedia advertising
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the performance period for which the services are
rendered, or recognised when the Group fulfilled
the specific performance obligation under the
finalised contract terms with customers.

(i) Public relations, marketing campaigns and
other services

Revenue from public relations, marketing
campaigns and other services is recognised when
the Group fulfilled the specific performance
obligation under the finalised contract terms with
customers.

(iii) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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1

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised
as deferred income and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

182

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of foreign operations with functional
currency other than RMB are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve,
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Related parties

(@

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

184
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

186

Principal versus agent considerations —
revenue from provision of advertising
services

In determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in the provision of advertising
services, judgements and considerations of all relevant
facts and circumstances are required. The Group is a
principal in a transaction if the Group obtains control of
services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, and has latitude in
establishing prices and selecting publishers, or has
several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records
the net amount earned as commissions from services
provided.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are
estimated based on a number of factors which include
ageing of overdue trade receivables, historical payment
profiles and the corresponding historical credit losses
rate of the Group's customers, current market conditions
and forecast of future economic conditions, and with
reference to expected credit loss rates of comparable
companies in the same industry at the end of each
reporting period. Where the estimation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives while assessing the expected credit loss
of other receivables during 12 months unless there has
been significant increase in credit risk since the initial
recognition.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are rendering of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE
(BRBBEEN - AUARESIR)

3 WHERDEBHRE
(a) W=

AEEZ X BXHRREEER

traditional offline media advertising, online media BTIHEES SBLEERE
advertising, public relations, marketing campaigns and EHNH - EHEHREMR
other services. Further details regarding the Group’s e BAAEBTEER &
principal activities are disclosed in note 3(b). HEIBRWIEE3(b) WK o
Disaggregation of revenue Wz 7 5l
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RERFEHANKRZEER
customers by major service lines is as follows: FERDHN T -
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Revenue from contracts with BBV EREEAR
customers within the scopeof  E 155 ERMN
HKFRS 15 REEFENKE
Disaggregated by major service lines 123 ZRRIELEHI D 1)
Traditional offline media advertising {E 43 T 182 & & IR 1%
services
— acting as a principal —1ERETERMEA 60,850 136,856
Online media advertising services 49 |- 82 & & IR 7%
— acting as a principal —1EREERMEA 3,870 29,740
— acting as an agent — 1'1575'51{}% 447 1416
Public relations, marketing EIHEB R
campaigns and other services* 3 \ﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬂ‘%*
— acting as a principal —ERFERIEA 3,802 7,348
68,969 175,360
* Revenue from public relations, marketing campaigns * RERAE - 2T E

includes revenue of sales of goods.

BREHEEMAKS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing is disclosed in note 3(b)(i).

The Group's customers with whom transactions have

exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue in the respective
year are set out below:

3

Wy

(a)

Ko &S (&)

s (%)
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>

U= %ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁ’]
7 DRI EE 3(b) () & -

N

REFERZFEBAEBEWA

10N AREEEFHININT

2022 2021
2022 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARBFIT
Customer A BEFA 11,505  N/ATER*
Customer B EFB 10,860 N/A N3 A *
Customer C EFC 10,843 18,023
Customer D ®FD 7,963 N/A 3B A *
Customer E XPE N/A RE A * 54,837
Customer F ZFF N/A 38 A * 19,245
Customer G EPG N/A 38 A * 17,440
Customer H EFH N/A REF * 17,014
41,171 126,559
* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of KEHBEREPOW AR ARE

the Group's total revenue for the respective year.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 23(a).
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REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

— Traditional offline media advertising services:
operation of media advertising services on
television and other broadcasting channels,
newspapers, journals, public transports, elevators
and lifts;

— Online media advertising services: operation of
media advertising services on selected websites,
online social media groups and applications (refer
to as "Apps”).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=A RSN

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

190

(i) Segmentresults, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and costs are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the costs incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments. However, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets, is

not measured.

The Group’s senior executive management is
provided with segment information concerning
segment revenue and profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s senior

executive management regularly.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings before
finance costs, interest income, taxes and
depreciation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive
at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as listing
expenses, staff costs, directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate

administration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkoEBHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DIFHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities i) 7PEEEBE - EEREE
(Continued) (#&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BZE2022F R 2021F 12 A
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, BNNAIEBFE  RERK
as well as information regarding the Group's =B ENKBEERS
reportable segments as provided to the Group's A E - AR RSB &
most senior executive management for the SETHERBAERSESA
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of AASRER RENHNE
segment performance for each of the years ended BAREETERS @E
31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below. Ky EBRIZFTE) - FI5H
To
Traditional
offlinemedia  Online media
For the year ended BZ2022%12831A advertising advertising
31 December 2022 LLEE services services  Other services* Total
B
ANt MLgE
BERS BERY AR5+ @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSI AR®Tn  AR®Tn  AR%T:n

Disaggregated by timingof ~ BHEZWHERHIE

revenue recognition

Pointin time i3 = 2,090 1,184 3,274
Overtime BEZEEEDR 60,850 2,227 2,618 65,695
Reportable segment revenue &2 Bk 60,850 4317 3,802 68,969

Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7 % 4 bRl / (&518)
(adjusted EBITDA) (RRIRHKER -
FMEWA - BER
mEANRH) 13,062 (6,317) 1,486 8,231
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

3

192

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WEKRSWBEHE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) b) DIFHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities i) 7PEEEBE - EEREE
(Continued) (&)
Traditional
offinemedia  Online media
For the year ended HE01ENANA advertising advertising
31 December 2021 It5E services services  Other services* Total
BT RLme
BERE EERE  HtkE &5
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARt  ARET:H
Disaggregated by timingof BRI KHBHSE
revenue recognition
Point in time lllizE - 6,780 2715 9,495
Over time ReER D 13685 24,376 4633 165,865
Reportable segment revenue 7 #i4%2 $ 136,856 31,15 7348 175,360
Reportable segmentprofit &5 B
(adjusted EBITDA) (BRIRMBER
FEWA - BER
REMNEH) 34171 2916 2750 39837
* Other services include devising strategies, * HuREBES EHR
formulating advertising solutions, co-ordinating B - BIEEESBERA
with media platforms as well as organising and 22 B fE A S A4 2 DL
executing campaigns. NAR R R TTIEED -
Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE
(BRBBEEN - AUARESIR)

3 WmkoBHE (FH)

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) 2 EBEE (M)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (loss)/ (i) THREIBHBR),HEF
profit Y ¥ AR
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Reportable segment profit Al ERE D EEF 8,231 39,837
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment — 4% « & M & & (590) (662)
— Right-of-use assets —(FREEE (3,766) (3.116)
Finance costs WBEA (870) (443)
Other revenue E e 663 3,572
Other net loss HithE5i8 /%58 (10) (4)
Unallocated head office and Ao RRINEMY
corporate expenses and LA K E b 57
other expenses (50,209) (31,564)
Consolidated (loss)/profit AT (BE), /%7
before taxation (46,551) 7,620

(iii) Geographicinformation

All of the Group's revenue and assets are

generated and located in the PRC.

(iii) WEER

AREBEMA WS MEEY

Ka RARRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

3  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkoBEHE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Revenue expected to be recognised in the () EEHRAKRKREAREBRES
future arising from contracts in existence at HEHEAEEANKE
the reporting date
Contracts with customers within the scope of EBRMBHREERE 1SR
HKFRS 15 RNEFEXN
The Group has applied the practical expedient in AREBRHERKEAEYVERS
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its service contracts. B EREEREISTRI21ER
Hence the Group does not disclose information about WEBRERERE - At A&
revenue that it will be entitled to when it satisfies the BEYmiEEElMERNETXE
remaining performance obligations under these BH(FEFEHER A —F A
contracts that had an original expected duration of one T)ETNHSRENEERFEERE
year or less. Excluding these contracts, the aggregated BHORFENER -BRZEEL
amount of the transaction price allocated to the Hh - R2022%F 12 A31H - B
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s EAREERESHNETRARE
existing contracts is RMB8,016,000 as at 31 December METHNRGBEREER
2022 (2021: RMB9,727,000). The Group expects to AR #8016,0007T (2021 F = A
recognise these revenue within four years when these E#®9,7270007T) - AEETEH
services are rendered. ROFAREZEREEER
ZEWE o
4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Hfttz=s
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Interest income B A 29 130
Government grants (i) B 488 B () 177 2,000
Others Hib 457 1,442
663 3,572
()  Government grants represent various forms of () R 8 Bh ¥ A B b 5 R AT i
incentives and subsidies granted to the Group BB TAEEARAER Z
unconditionally by the local government authorities in He L&D -
the PRC.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE
(BRBBEEN - AUARESIR)

5 BREAT(EER), 8

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BEAT(EBR), Saf &g ™7
BIRBER
(a) Finance costs (a) BIIEER
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 425 -
Interest on lease liabilities ﬁ(EEL BEFE 445 443
870 443

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

(b) ETRA (BEEEHE)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT

Salaries, wages, bonuses and E e N I N [ A 1
other benefits H {18 F 14,105 11,820
Contributions to retirement schemes 3R {RK5T 2|4t 7 1,368 943
15,473 12,763

Employees of the Group'’s PRC subsidiary are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal
governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiary contributes
funds which are calculated on certain percentages of
the employee salary as agreed by the local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of pension benefits beyond the contributions
to retirement schemes described above.

AEEFREMNBEARNES R
2HEBEMTRAEIE NS

B SR E R RET & ANERE A E
BiE AR maat SR - S
BrRIEFEE - HERE

“:-*ﬂﬂﬁﬂz}fﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ,a%ﬁ@ﬂ@

KrERA DR
B bt R KR SISO - AR &
) £ 78 A HE LA R AR AR AT R
MEREML -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5

BRBLAT (B51R), & F ()

(c) Otheritems (c) HfbEH
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Media costs BHBER AN 61,219 133,242
Costs for public relations, marketing /A8 + & 8458 &%
campaigns and other services H b RFE AL AN 2,313 4,587
63,532 137,829
Depreciation charge EXH
— Property, plant and equipment  — )% « B MR E 590 662
— Right-of-use assets — (FREEE 3,766 3,116
4,356 3,778
Recognition of credit losses BREEEERE
allowance for
— Trade receivables — B G REWEIA 26,721 3,741
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN BN &
— audit services — BT 1,680 2,220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 FEEBEXRNFEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEBERBIERE -
profit or loss represents:

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Current tax expense (note21(a)  BNEATRIBERA S (A1:iL21(a))
Provision for PRC income tax for FR TSR B E

the year 121 3,531
(Over)/under-provision for PRC BEFERBEMAEH
income tax in respect of prior years  (FBEERME) /BB T B (8) 191
Deferred tax ELERE
Origination of temporary EEYREERE
differences (note 21(b)) (B1aE21(b) (6,904) (973)
(6,791) 2,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 MEBBRNAMED (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REBABRBAENRERX
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax HEH(EFR) RBANY
rates: iR :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation MELRT (E18) A (46,551) 7,620
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before ERAGTRT(EE) T
taxation, calculated at the rates WBEDIE  REAR
applicable to profits in the HEARDERE R &N
jurisdiction concerned (note (i) MEE (KT 0) (11,393) 2,506
Tax effect of unused tax losses not im AR MR F A AR A e 18
recognised opkS -2 4,564 -
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR B A E 46 52
(Over)/under-provision in respect of B+ FJE (HREERE)
prior years BETE (8) 191

Income tax expense Frismif X (6,791) 2,749

Note: HieE -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i) BERSHEREBR L
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any EMRBRHRL - NEEE
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. ARFESHE N RER L

SN RETEH -
The Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong is a qualifying REBREBZMBARR
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate FERMEHEERDE
regime, and the first HK$2 million of assessable profits B2 8 B8 B RS M N
are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining 8.25% (2021 %F : 825%) ) %
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). T MER T FERR T A A

LA16.5% (2021 = 165%) Ky %t
The statutory income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is REIME AR R E SR
25% (2021: 25%). K 5525% (2021 FF 1 25%) °

198 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report
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REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of BIEFS A THEDN E 383N AR A
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BIROIE 2 (EEESFEER)
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMEEMemT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2022F12A31BLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
IE - #E BRI
EEne KEOEA Mg a HE 23 st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%®Tr AR%Trn AR%¥Fr AR%¥Tx
Executive directors HTEZ(BETRE)
(including chairman)
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To BAfEkE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan BEW Tt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek R LA 120 - - - 120
Mr. Liu Biao Bl 120 616 39 777
Ms. Liang Wei 2L T 120 364 42 533
Sub-total I\ 600 980 9 81 1,670
Independent non-executive BV FHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster FkEfE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Tian Tao AELE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia BEMLL 180 - - - 180
Sub-total g 540 - - - 540
Total @t 1,140 980 9 81 2,210
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RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 7 EEME (@)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31MBLEFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T% - #85 /N
EEe  REDEA MiBTEA ATEIfR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFE ARETR ARETT AR®ETn
Executive directors HITEE (BEER)
(including chairman)
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To AFEkE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan BEfrt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek AEEEE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Liu Biao EliEys 120 486 119 36 761
Ms. Liang Wei 2ot 120 605 48 36 809
Sub-total S 600 1,091 167 72 1,930
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE
directors
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster FkESEE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Tian Tao AExE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia it 180 - - - 180
Suptotel N 4 - - -
Total @5 1,140 1,091 167 72 2470

There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out in
note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
Company or the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emolument
during the year.

AEEMEAESNA N ESH
5% B = Hr A £ ST AS SR AN AR B
T AFRTBENAKIMAKRRR
K 7K 5 [ By O 22 R - SK(E R RERL AR
B - FAMBEEINELARENE
TS -
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REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2021: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2021: three) individuals are as follows:

8 EEHMAL

s mm e ALH 28002
¢ A)REE  HEMRWE7HE

o HRAEM3IA AT (20216 : 35)
EI’J TIABEES BN

2022 2021
2022 fF 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments e N EH th 35 B 1,522 1,548
Discretionary bonuses @’] [EIEAL 14 125
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGHEIHER 126 109

1,662 1,782

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

3% Q021 F 3% ) &S EHMMA LA
FMNFUATEE -

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 FF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AEL

Nil to HKD1,000,000 T % 1,000,000 87T 3 3
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RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

9 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the year of RMB39,760,000 (2021: profit
of RMB4,871,000) and the weighted average of
180,000,000 ordinary shares (2021: 180,000,000 shares)
in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BERRHE
Office
Motor Leasehold equipment
vehicles improvement and others Total
NS
RE HEHEE R EA At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETE

Cost: B
At 1January 2021 R2021E1 A1H 1123 - 1,445 2,568
Additions INE - - 529 529

At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 R

1 January 2022 202F1A1H 1,123 - 1,974 3,097
Additions NE - 1277 2571 1,528
Disposal HE - - 97) (97)
At 31 December 2022 202212318 1123 1277 2,128 4,528
Accumulated depreciation: EiHTE :

At T January 2021 R202141 A1H (927) - (984) (1,911)
Charge for the year FRME (185) - 477) (662)
At31December2021and  R2021F 12 A31B K

1 January 2022 202%F1A1H (1,112) - (1,461) (2573)
Charge for the year FAHRR - (276) (314) (590)
Written back on disposals HERE D - - 93 93
At 31 December 2022 F202212 31 A (1,112) (276) (1,682) (3,070)
Net book value: BREHE
At 31 December 2022 R2022612 A31 A 11 1,001 446 1458
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 1 - 513 524

2022 FEH REAXABHEBEERRAF | 203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 FEREEE

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is ERARNEBEAZXBANEEER
presenting as below: EI N

Advertising

spaces and
billboards Office Total

BEELR
EE WAE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT AR%®TRT

Cost: AR
At 1 January 2021 R 202141 B 1A - 2,728 2728
Additions INE 9,612 3,356 12,968

At 31 December 2021 and 2021 F 12 A3 B R

1 January 2022 20221 A1R 9612 6,084 15,696
Remeasurement Bt = - 586 586
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 A31H 9,612 6,670 16,282

Accumulated depreciation: ZiHIfE :

At 1 January 2021 20211 H1H - (2,160) (2,160)
Charge for the year FRIE (2,403) (713) (3,116)

At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31H K

1 January 2022 2029118 (2,403) (2,873) (5,276)
Charge for the year FRH (2,403) (1,363) (3,766)
At31December2022  M202%F1R2ANAH “4806) ... “4236) .. ©.042)
Net book value: BRENFE -

At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 4,806 2,434 7,240
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 7,209 3211 10,420
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REMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group leases advertising spaces and billboards and
offices expiring from 20 to 36 months. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options, the future lease payments during the
extension periods are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

1 ERAEEE (&)

RNEE L E SN EE AR
NE - HER20ZE 368 B A fEiw ©
BEEHERRFHHEENR -

FTHEBERANHRERRE
BHAO-BRBINRNEEE - &
ATERN AEESRKBEEARE
BRI TR A R RIEREE - AR
HEEELME - AREREERLS
FHFAER /BB ETERERE
B WAKRBELSERETE
EREEE AITERARA KK
HENKBEIFAHERBNE -

AR EEERNEEZFAXER
DT

2022 2021
2022 2021 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REBAEERREIDH
assets by class of underlying asset: FHREESENEER
Advertising spaces and billboards B & B b 2,403 2,403
Office WAE 1,363 713
3,766 3,116
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) MEBERNE (Kt 56) 445 443
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2 W B T 7 i 4% AR 8
received HeER - (771)
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

12

13

14

206

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

12 RBARIKRE
TREBHETEZEARAEBELSL

BEXBENNBRARFE - Bx
BEERASN - PR 2B R ST R o

Proportion of ownership interest

FrEgRRL A
Particulars of Group's
Place of incorporation issuedand  effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activity
BETR  AREH ARR WEAR
DRER MR R ER R BRRAFE ERAE BE BE TEEH
Inspiring Chance Holding Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100% 100% - Investment holding
AERLHS (Ee REER
Shining Glow Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
&R AT REER
|con Culture Media Investment Co, Ltd.* ~ The PRC RMB71,960,000 100% - 100% Integrated multimedia
advertising services
RAX(CEHERERRAR i AR 719000070 GRYBERESRY
* Icon Culture Media Investment Co.,, Ltd. is a wholly foreign * AENNALBEEIREBR AR A—

owned enterprise in the PRC and the official name is in
Chinese. The English translation of the name is for reference
only.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022, other non-current assets mainly
represent rental deposits.

CONTRACT COSTS

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2022 are the
costs paid to service suppliers to fulfil a contract with one of
the Group's customers. Contract costs will be recognised as
part of “cost” in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which revenue from the related service is recognised. There
was no revenue nor impairment loss recognised related to
the contract costs during the year (2021: nil).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BR=BTH

8 MR IR
59h - BUAREIIR)

15 EZREMEWRRKIA

2022 2021

2022 2021 4

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

BaF ARET T AREFIT

Current B

Trade debtors B S5 EWERER 136,381 150,514
Less: Credit loss allowance B EEEEEE 23(a) (31,367) (4,646)
Subtotal /NE 105,014 145,868

Prepayments for media costs MR A TEN A 444 15,193
Others Hi 3,317 9,178
Less: Credit loss allowance o EEEERE (2,380) (2,380)
Swbtotal et 1,381 21991

106,395 167,859

Rental deposits might be recovered after more than one year.

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental

deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised as

expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged accounts
receivable with carrying amount of RMB31,200,000 (2021: nil)
for the bank loans of the Group (note 19).

HeReA RN —F&ED - BER
TRINOFIE B 5 K H U IR
BHIN —F AR B SRR -

MR2022%12H31H

N SE TR N

EERMBEITER(ME19) GHERME
B A A R 31,200,000 (2021 4 :

) B FEUR AR -
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

208

As of 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the date of revenue recognition
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

15 BEZREMERFEE)

(a)

R 2 AT

R202F 128318 B5EK
BB R S B HAND H0BR
EEBEENRESTIT ¢

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 FF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREFIT

Within 1 month — (@A K 2,866 28,964
1to 3 months —Z={EA 4,764 40,617
310 12 months =&+ @A 97,384 76,287
105,014 145,868

Trade receivables are due 90 days to 180 days from the
date of revenue recognition (2021: 60 days to 180 days).
Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in

note 23(a).

B S rEW BN ER K B 5
#2590 H 2180 H (2021 4F : 60
HZE180H)EIH - BAAEE
ERBE M E— T BFENKH
FF23@)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Prepayments for: FNRIE
Media costs IR RERK AR 444 15,193
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RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BERBRELEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERBEEEYEE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AREBTT

Cash at bank RITHRE 12,016 12,317
Cash on hand FoEIRE 3 1
12,019 12,318
At 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents placed R2022F 12 A318 » TR F
with banks in the mainland China amounted to AT RS NESEE
RMB11,594,000 (2021: RMB12,141,000). Remittance of Y& A R 11,594,000 7T (2021
funds out of mainland China is subject to the relevant F: AR®12,141,0007T ) © #
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control B A PE H & & /B ST A
promulgated by the PRC government. KT 78 0 9 4 8 SN B o1 AR Bl
K FRBI o
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RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 RERBELEEY (&)
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation (b) BRBiAT(EE) B ELE
to cash (used in)/generated from operations: (FTH) FrEHESMNYE :
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftax  ARB¥FR ARETET

(Loss)/profit before taxation BELRT () % T (46,551) 7,620
Adjustments for: MU T EBEEHRAE :
Finance costs Er g == 5(a) 870 443
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment — ¥ % « & MR E 5(c) 590 662
— Right-of-use assets —FAEEE 5(c) 3,766 3,116
Recognition of credit losses Z S RERFIBEEEE

allowance for trade receivables {5 TE2 5(c) 26,721 3,741
Disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BE M&E

equipment 1 -
COVID-19-related rent 2 W ER A T 7 b 24

concessions received RS ER 11 = 777

Changes in working capital: &E&E$8 5 :

Decrease in trade and other E 5 R EH M EW R IE

receivables Ve 29,213 8,522
Decrease/(increase) in other HEMIERBEE

non-current assets S (1) 142 (1,107)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 L EMENFKIA

payables and contract liabilities LA K& & & &R D (25,787) (20,661)

Cash (used in)/generated from &% (FT ) Fi88HE &
operations (11,035) 1,565
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RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 BEakBRSZEEY (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ) MEFTBMELAEEBENY
financing activities: iR -
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the Sy Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ = 7:'3 E T{fi BE
consolidated financial statements, the table below S T§§$%ﬂ§%@}%
details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing TMBEEHHS  BERE

FIFR e MELRDEL
MBEDAREESREIARNKER
TRENAKEGAETRE

ROBRBERDREREN

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. affe
Bank loans
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
BITERR
HABERK HESE et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE AR®TRT AR®BTR

At 1 January 2022 202251818 = 10,672 10,672

Changes from financing FBEBRESHEEE :
cash flows:

Capital element of lease BENHEEHRSH

rentals paid B AR - (2,869) (2,869)
Interest element of lease ENEEREH

rentals paid FMEE D - (445) (445)
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE TS FIE 20,000 - 20,000
Interests paid 2ERHE (425) - (425)
Total changes from financing RIE IR & RE &
_cashflows o BB 19575 . (3314) 16,261
Other changes: H g :
Increase in lease liabilities RAEAREET S 3T

from entering into new MEMHEE

leases during the period BEEImn - 586 586
Interest expenses (note 5(a) R BFXZ (MaF5@)) 425 445 870
Totalotherchanges Htb&@wesE 425 1,031 1,456
At 31 December 2022 7202212 H31H 20,000 8,389 28,389
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RE SRR M A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 RERFRSEEY (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ) BMETBFELEEENY
financing activities: (Continued) BR - (4&)
Lease
liabilities
MEARE
RMB'000
ARBTIT
At1January2021  RenfamanB 670
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELEH
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREHERLY (2,195)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERESHNF ERBH (443)
Total changes from financing cash flows == REREnBESLE (2638)
Other changes: Hih g :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into A ZEAEIET 7 HifAEHY
new leases during the period MEAEEM 12,968
COVID-19-related rent concessions received = Y ERFT BB A AR & Z
(note 11) (Hiat11) (777)
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) M ERZ (Kt 5a) 443
Totalotherchanges ... HeE®@®E 12640
At 31 December 2021 R20215F12A31H 10,672

212 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 EZREMENFIE
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Trade payables g 5N RIE 18,706 48,567
Other tax payables HAth e T8 219 1,026
Payroll payables BN TE 719 1,570
Others Hh 3,752 4,103
23,396 55,266
All of trade and other payables as at 31 December 2022 are R202F 12A31BEWMEESNE
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on fib FE T IBTE BRI AS R — F N &8 3k
demand. REXRER -
The credit period granted by the suppliers is between 30 and HIER R T H{E B B30 E 180K (2021
180 days (2021: between 10 and 120 days). FINFI0E120K) ©
As of the end of each of the reporting period, the ageing HESREHR ESHENFFHER
analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as REZERHNRRTAT
follows:
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT ARBTT

Within 1 month —@ARN 3,361 11,145
1to 3 months —Z2={@A 4,321 9,421
3to 12 months =Z+_f@A 6,162 26,188
Over 12 months Bet+t—EA 4,862 1813

18,706 48,567
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 18 GHERE
2022 2021
2022 % 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Services fees received in advance BN E PR E

from customers 14,119 8,035
Services fees received in advance from customers are TEWEF R &N UKL SE 8% 5
recorded as contract liabilities upon receipt. Revenue from AdBaE - IZEHREMEKRERE
provision of services is recognised according to the BIEE 1(p) BTSN A & 5T R FERR ©

accounting policy set out in note 1(p).

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEERE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At the beginning of the year F 1] 8,035 8,636
Decrease in contract liabilities as a AERE T AFETEH

result of recognising revenue BENFAWREEE

during the year that was included NENaERD

in the contract liabilities at the

beginning of the year (715) (2,121
Increase in contract liabilities as a EIBBHRIBEHMNE LD

result of receipt in advance BEEm 6,799 1,520

14,119 8,035

214 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

19 BANKLOANS 19 |RITEXR
(a) The analysis of the repayment schedule of (a) RITEFREBEREBRIMTMN
bank loans is as follows: T
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRNHIRERKEE 20,000 -
(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for (b) EFBITEREFAERK
bank loans RENEE
2022 2021
2022 FF 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Secured bank loans BHEMRITER 20,000 -

At 31 December 2022, RMB10,000,000 of the bank 2022F 12 A31H » NEH A

facilities of the Group was guaranteed by a director and 2 A R 110,000,000 7T B R 1T BE

pledged by the accounts receivable with amount of BH—ZEERERERAER

RMB31,200,000 of the Group. The other bank facility of BEA R 31,200,000 7T &9 FE Uk

RMB10,000,000 was guaranteed by a director. BEZVEE 8 o A R ¥ 10,000,000
TTHEMRTRER —REF
TEFELR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

20 LEASE LIABILITIES 20 FHEAE
At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as R2022%F 128318 EEENHEE
follows: BEWT :
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Within1year A 4,707 3519
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZERER 3,682 3,419
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFRN - 3,734
Over 1 year HEE—F 3,682 7,153
8,389 10,672
21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 GREMBRRRFAEH
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) FEMBEMR RN KENHH T
statements of financial position represents: B
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At the beginning of the year FE 4 7,825 7438
Provision for PRC income tax FANRRETEHEE

for the year (note 6(a)) (HizF6() 121 3,531
(Over)/under-provision for PRC BEFERPEAEH

income tax in respect of prior (FREERAE) BET R

years (note 6(a)) (Hiz6() (8) 191
Income tax paid during the year FHRNENAEN (5,231) (3,335)
At the end of the year FR 2,707 7825
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised

Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets

The component of deferred tax assets recognised in the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21

wa

(BR=A RSN

PR SR AP
HAARBFIR)

mEMBRRRAEH (&)

(b) CRFBELEHRREE

EERBREERARSBINE

B

RELZE 2022 F X 2021 12 A 31

consolidated statements of financial position and the BIEFE  EHRAEVBRKIE
movements during the year ended 31 December 2022 TR B3R JE 7 1B & B MY 4B AR 0
and 2021 are as follows: SREESFNT
Credit loss
allowance Others Total
=&
EERE Hity et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFTT AREFTT
At 1 January 2021 B2021 51 A1 H 821 26 847
Credited to profitorloss T Az (M7t 6(a))
(note 6(a)) 935 38 973
At 31 December 2021 and 72021412 A 31 H
1 January 2022 K 20221 H1H 1,756 64 1,820
Credited to profitorloss T Az (M7t 6(a))
(note 6(a)) 6,681 223 6,904
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 H31H 8,437 287 8,724
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A BERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

218

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB17,979,000 (2021: nil) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Unrecognised tax losses are all from the PRC
operations that will expire in five years, from the year
the losses were incurred.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding income tax at 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits
earned since 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary
amounted to RMB3,482,000 (2021: RMB43,821,000).
Deferred tax liabilities relating to these temporary
differences amounting to RMB348,000 (2021:
RMB4,382,000) have not been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report
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(c)

(d)

RERBERERE

AR AE BT 5 1(n) BT 8 AEERCER
REBEBHRARZAHBEEA
R ¥ 17,979,000 7T (2021 £F = 4&)
BRELEHEELE  LTIAR
HERBEHRER AR RE
BESTAERNBENER
B R AT REME I K o R HE
REBBHEORENELEE
B EHE ST LA N fEm ) R
ZIE o

AERBELEHARE

BECEMGHR(EEMS
BDEREEHGD - EPE
TEERMBE2008F 1 A1HE
R ER B 5 1 1 U A P B D
BB - BIR10%EMIBINFTE
B BRIEEBF G L S BER
ﬁ o

R2022%F 128318 AL
& B B B A BRI R 99 K S
BB = B A A R 3,482,000
JL(20214F + A R % 43,821,000
TL) o BARSEYREENRL
FRIAE E AR 348,000 7T (2021
F: AR ¥4382,0007T) I 5
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 BEXR - HERRE
(a) Share capital (a) BX
Authorised share capital of the Company KN B EERAK
2022 2021
2022% 20015
Number of Shares Number of Shares
shares capital shares capital
REAEE RA& BiHEH BA
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  BFRRTEE 001 /87T

ZEBR 2,000,000,000 20,000,000  2,000,000,000 20,000,000

As of 31 December 2022, ordinary shares of the
Company with a total number of 180,000,000 (2021:
180,000,000 shares) were issued.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

MN2022F12A318 - &%
180,000,000 % A A &) E @A E
2%£77(2021 €F : 180,000,000 4% ) °

TEBRFAEABERBIRE
REAR B - WHEER AR E R
RRELHRERBMIE—F-
FTBELBREARRFGBEE
FEZHERSER -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Movements in component of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company'’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

22 EXR - #ERRKRE(E)

(b) HEzAMRIRD E B

FEESAESSEARSD Y
N RERES 2 HERNE
AR BBE - ARFREL
24 R AR5 AR D 2
B ERIINT

out below:
Share Share  Accumulated Exchange

capital premium loss reserves Total

k& BRH&RE ZitER ERfE -

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®ETn ARETT ARETT ARETE

At T January 2021 201 E1A1H 1,596 91,866 (19,500) (1511) 72451
Loss for the year FRER - - (2,376) - (2376)
Other comprehensive income  Eft 2 B - - - (647) (647)
Towl comprehensieincome  REMBEE S N 3% ... LA 3033
At 31 December 2021 2021 12A31H 1,596 91,866 (21,876) (2158) 69428
At 1 January 2022 RNF1A1E 1,596 91,866 (21.876) (2158) 69,428
Loss for the year FREE - - (498) - (498)
Other comprehensive income  Efi 2 EUE - - - 1907 1907
Towl comprehensiveincome  SEYmER e e e, .. 7 149

At 31 December 2022 R0nE 1 A3H 1,596 91,866 (22374) (251) 70837
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium at 31 December 2022
represented premium arising from capital
injection made by shareholders to the Company.

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, the
funds in the Company’s share premium account
are distributable to the equity shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve can be used to reduce previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into
capital in proportion to the existing equity interest
of investors.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 MR IR
(P BAEFHESN - I ARMFIR)

22 EXR - #EKRKRE(E)

(0 RENEERAR

(i)

(ii)

MR2022F 12 A 31 BRI
mEEBRRAAQGEE
EERRE -

RERSHSRRNE [
EREgZkEREEH
% RARKERENR
BEEBBETIHE
%5 BIARRE 2 Bt it (B
Rz B2 A DIk T DK
o

EEMRE

BREFBEARE  ANAF
MR EMBARAEBRESE
RRPEERTEELZ
10% T34 18 5 A1) 88 ¢ 20K 5F
iE BEERBESES
R & AR 2 500 o 8 #
FHHFEHELERDIRRKE
TR AIHETT ©

AERMBRAIARELBE
FEMNEBE(E) L7
BEEEZHAERERD
Ho iR LE 84 SR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
with functional currencies other than the RMB
presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(q).

(iv) Otherreserve

Other reserve represents the difference between
(1) the total consideration of RMB48,731,000 due
from the Company’s shareholders arising from
reorganisation; and (2) the aggregate amount of
share capital and share premium of Icon Media of
RMB36,824,000 prior to reorganisation.

(d) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB69,241,000
(2021: RMB67,832,000) which comprises of share
premium offset by accumulated loss and exchange
reserve of the Company.
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(0 RENEERARZ(E)

(iii) ERLGEE

ERFREERERERE
AARBZIIEEUINE
BIERINEEENEINE
5 2 B %5 R O P B SME
ZR-RBEIOIRENE
Q) FrEt & 5T UK B IR ©

(iv) HAff#E

HibfEis ) ELA MR
WARAIRREBRKE
AR #48,731,0007T : K& (2)
BHRIRAEENRA R

B fn i (B 48 &

36,824,000 T Z A1 Y Z= B ©

(d) AT IR

R2022F 12 A318 » At
TAAREERROFEERRE
# B AN R 69,241,000 7T (2021
F: AR ®678320007T) £
BARRAIEREEE R IE NG

B AR E (E -



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

(f)

The Group'’s primary objective when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Dividends

The directors have resolved not to declare any dividends
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(e)

(f)

EXRERE

AEEEREATZEERE
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BIRENEEH B RRIBET
FHEE o

RRRHEN B RRHBARST
SMNERFE IRV E AR

;@5
EERZ I TEIREZE202F

NRAJNBEFEZ2EARKE
(20214 + #8&) o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAAREEFIIR)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below.

(@) Creditrisk

224

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and restricted deposits with a bank is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high-
credit-quality, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due 90 days to 180 days from the
date of revenue recognition. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report

23

TRERER

REB—REBBREF S RER
MBESREBER o ANEE NI
FRBEAE N AN EB AR E R
FE R H B AR E R BR R Ef
N o

(a) EHAEB

ERRRIEXSH T RERT
H A RZ 15 8 AN 5% B E £ 5
BERORR NEENER
ERETBREES REMER
FR-AKEEBRRE MRS
EEYMRERRN —HERITHR
REIFHRAELENERRRA
R BEXSHFREELER
IFHRTT - AEERREER
ARERIE - EBEITHEER
B UHEEREHLEEREA
R EHE o

AEEYW EERERBRTNS
BAKEEEEERER -

B 5% R H bW IE

AEBCDHIEEERRERER
KB FTEEEZERER
ETEENRFAEETREARG
R - ZFAHETEHEHEE
P®TR AR e & B Rl
R FEE D WE BRI BB
EREPMEPEEEBMEL
KEIRIBNER - E 5 EUKK
HRERW S HBRET00 B 2
180 HEIE] - REERE T M
EPERREHERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 23 SRiEAREE (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EHAmEME (&)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 29%
(2021: 33%) and 77% (2021: 75%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and other receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs, respectively, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's different
customer segments.

B 5 RHE e R (&)

BEAEFEERRIEREASE
.EEHH{.%IJ%)EE@EXH PR T
EAE o REHIR - 29% (2021
& 1 33%) K& 77% (2021 F : 75%)
W B 5 FE YR IR 1B 58 A FE YUK
EERATFPERAREFHK
I3 o

AEBIZEENBEFERNN
BHREEBEK12ME AN TEH
EEBENZEINAEES
P USSR TR e L At P MR TR Y
T%i%’éf% C B E R R R A
c AR AKENEEBRL
ﬂiﬁ'leTﬁ}E“* T UNENG
RIEEE - EREHREN
Eﬂ@ﬁ‘ﬁ?\@"%—*ﬁ#$%
TREP D& ZERD
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 23 SREKRERE (&)
(a) Creditrisk (Continued) (a) ERREBE(E)
Trade and other receivables (Continued) ESREMEWFEIE(E)
The following table provides information about the TREHNAEERLE FEWRR
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade HASSERARRELTEHRES
receivables: EEER
2022
2022 F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rates amount allowance

RHMERE REAE HERE
%  RMB'000  RMB'000
Bt ARETR AR®TR

Current (not past due) BNER (R HR) 0.85% 23,441 198
Less than 3 months past due #HR DR 3 1B A 1.89% 4,793 91

Over 3 months but less than B3 E A DA 1B
6 months past due LR 6fEA 7.99% 50,191 4,010

Over 6 months but less than mH 6 fE A LB
9 months past due LR 9E A 12.25% 30,365 3,720

Over 9 months but less than wAROME A LA LB
12 months past due D121 A N/A i - _
Over 12 months past due wER 1218 A £ 21.06% 5,375 1,132
114,165 9,151
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

8 MR IR
(P BAEFHESN - I ARMFIR)

23 TREREEA)

(a) fEAEMR(E)

B 5 R H At FEWKRIE (&)
2021
20214
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rates amount allowance
HEHEREEX REEE BERG

%

RMB'000 RMB'000

Batk AREFT ARETT
Current (not past due) BER (R HR) 041% 99,043 406
Less than 3 months past due wHR DR 31E A 0.97% 15,306 148
Over 3 months but less than BHEI3E A LA LB
9 months past due LR 9E A 8.44% 35,003 2,955
Over 9 months but less than #HEAE AL E1B
12 months past due D121 A 72.56% 92 67
Over 12 months past due BER 1218 B IA E N/A 3 B - -
149,444 3,576

* In addition to above provision matrix, the Group has
made individual loss allowance for certain customers. As
at 31 December 2022, the accumulated individual loss
allowance was RMB22,216,000 (2021: RMB1,070,000)
with the carrying amounts before loss allowance of

RMB22,216,000 (2021: RMB1,070,000).

Br Eull B EmE N - AEE
EmETEFELEREIE
B o 2029128318
ZEERBEREAARKE
222160007 (20215 © A R
#1,070,0007T) + FAOBR A 1B B
HEAHNEEEAARE
2221600070 (20214F : A R
#1,070,000 7T) °
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 23 SREAREE (E)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) ERREBE(E)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group used judgement in assessing the expected
credit loss rate and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, mainly based on the ageing of
overdue trade receivables, historical payment profiles
and the corresponding historical credit losses rate of the
Group’s customers, current market conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions, and with
reference to expected credit loss rates of comparable
companies in the same industry at the end of each
reporting period.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

E5 kAt REW R (&)

AEECRFERHBEEBE
R R ) T 3 5 BRB RORUE
AAENBAE DE2RES
BERRAEBEEREFPNEBRE
2 FEMGR IR fR I ~ B 2 ST #1
MREERELEEERE M
S B R AR AR TE A
W 2ERRITEAA L RARE
HEEERE -

FREE S EYHRIBAREAE

trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEEERAESHIT :
Loss
allowance
EiERE
RMB'000
ARET T
Balance at 1 January 2021 20211 A1 BEVES R 905
Impairment losses recognised during the year & AN B W8 RE E1E 3,741

Balance at 31 December 2021 and R2021%F 12 A31B R

1 January 2022 20221 A1 BRI 4,646
Impairment losses recognised during the year 4 [N = ¥E 28 (B 5 18 26,721
Balance at 31 December 2022 2022512 A 31 Ba&sk 31367
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 MR IR
(P BAEFHESN - I ARMFIR)

23 TREREEA)

(b)

RBETRERE

$§%IE’JB{ RREMERER
HESFRLEETREERY
MBI UEEREAERTER
TREBNMNETIZYHEREEAR
REZTHOBREBREAENE
REEERRBESHEK -

TRERAKBENEHRAEER
BERRKNBRTAENIRB
o ZEERTDERGRORRM
EEIE_:F_//IL;(@?E{%FH AF =

payments computed using contractual rates) and the EHF BN EAEFEE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: j:ﬁ T xF HER
As at 31 December 2022
R2022F12A31H
More than
Within  1yearbut
1year or less than Carrying
on demand 2years Total amount
—FRg® -FHUE
RER EWEUT @t REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TR AR%Tn AR%TrR
Bank loans RITER 20,504 - 20,504 20,000
Lease liabilities HERE 4,958 3,772 8,730 8,389
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRE 23,396 - 23,396 23,396
48,858 3,772 52,630 51,785
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 23 SREMEE(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REESRM (E)

As at 31 December 2021
R201E 128318
Morethan ~ More than
Within -~ Tyearbut  2years but
1 year or less than less than Camying

on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR%  —FUE MERL
BER EMEAT BREUT @t REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARBTT AR%TR ARTR ARETR

Lease liabilities HEEE 3876 3879 3718 11473 10672

Trade and other payables B9 RHMENTIE 55,266 - - 55,266 55,266
59,142 3879 3,718 66,739 65,938

(c) Currency risk (c) BE¥EMR

Individual companies within the Group have limited N B N E B A 7 8 9N R B

foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are BIR JTEHRAKIEHZZH A

denominated in the same currency as the functional B EEBEHBANINEEERN

currency of the operations in which they relate. HREMEE
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24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 ERBEBAEARS
(a) Key management personnel compensation (a) TEETE A SR
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBFTEEREAEMEHIN(E2
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s EWA7BRBENSN TARAA
directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows: BEMFIBE) T

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 3,503 3,930
Retirement scheme of define TE R FGRIRET )
contribution 207 181
3,710 4111
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)). M@z A B TR | (B
5(b)) °
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24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Other material related parties transactions
and balances

() The Group rendered media services to related
parties that included companies that were owned
or under significant influence by a close family
member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the Group. The service revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB7,801,000 (2021: RMB3,808,000) and the
amount of trade receivables and contract liabilities
at 31 December 2022 were RMB1,323,000 (2021:
RMB580,000) and RMB5,415,000 (2021:
RMB480,000) respectively.

(i)  The Group purchased media resources from
related parties that included companies that were
owned or under significant influence by a close
family member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the Group. The resource procurement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB2,392,000 (2021: RMB2,352,000) and the
amount payables at 31 December 2022 were
RMB673,000 (2021: RMB584,000).

(i) The Group leased office premises from related
parties that included companies that were owned
or under significant influence by a close family
member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the Group. The rental and
management fee for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMB1,314,000 (2021: RMB852,000) and
the deposit receivables at 31 December 2022 were
RMB61,000 (2021: RMB203,000).
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N B W) B B 5 IR A RS
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202F 12 A31 HIEEE -
R z=E B AR
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RE SRR MEE
(BRBBEEN - AUARESIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 25 ARIEEHABMRRE

POSITION

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R #ZT)
2022 2021
2022 2021 5
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
MaF ARET T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B A RIRRE 12 —* —*
Other non-current assets HiIEmeh & E 82,290 80,408
82,290 80,408
Current asset REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents Be RREEEY 364 113
364 113
Netcurrentassets = HWREAEFEE 64 113
Non-current liability FREBEE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEnRsEsasE 11,817 11,093
oo 1817 11093
Net assets EERE 70,837 69,428
Capital and reserves ERR#HE
Share capital P& s 22(b) 1,596 1,596
Reserves H1E 69,241 67,832
Total equity ERBE 70,837 69,428

* As the amount of share capital is less than RMB1,000, it is
represented as nil for presentation purpose.

* A Z8 D AR EE1,0007T
MEVME  EIRAZ -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

26

27

(BRBAEMEIN - HAARKEIIR)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTIES

As at 31 December 2022, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party to be Shining Icon (BVI) Limited,
while the ultimate controlling party of the Company to be
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

234 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2022 Annual Report

26

27

BEER&AEHR

R2022F12A31H EFRARR
B B # £ %) 75 A Shining Icon (BVI)
Limited @ Ex&%95HIH A B F/E5kAE -

EEMEMAKERZE2022F 12
A31BIEFEEMMNIEET - 5
ZARZREBUETRATE

@iéiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ BH - &S

TR S R M BUR B E 2022
E12ﬁ315¢¢?ﬁﬂ<$}_&9’7¥ﬁﬂ

AT 1 BT B - T 32 B i o
REMBRERM - REEB B
BIETSI T RAEBEBNES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE SRR MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) — (Br BAEFTIEIN » MIAARKEFIIR)

27 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 27 EREMEMKREERZE2022F12
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BA31HLEFELERNEBET - #
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED EHIRZEAREERNTE(E)

31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

RELT B

ZEREEN

SETHBER

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

FEMBRELERIE 175 REEX 2023F1A18
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
ERGTHERE 1V RNER] - ABHREKNZS  BESBERREBKIETE 20231 A18
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice 1 January 2023

Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies
ERGTHERIE 1V SRNIEE] - A BFHREKE) 25 REBH R &G EREHEH 20231 A18

F29  (EHIEAXHIET © @t R BE
Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: 1 January 2023

Definition of accounting estimates

BRGENERNER] - B BUR - Saf it BB RIER - SathataEE 2023F1 A1 F

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and 1 January 2023
liabilities arising from a single transaction

BEGFERE 12RNER] - 1K - E—XZHELEER 2023F1A1H
B BB EE IR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REBEFAETHZEEHN T RIE

the impact of these developments is expected to be in the AEIEMNEREZ - BRIRLL - K

period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the EERRIRANZFET T AR e

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on FEMBHRRENERTE -

the consolidated financial statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the N X#HF|ANEBNBER AR REEZ 2 ¥
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the EUNEERBEME - HiEgaE FI%
published audited financial statements, is set out below: RSB R FRK ¢

Year ended 31 December
BEZNANALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 F 20215 20204 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETI AR®TRT ARBTL

Revenue g 68,969 175,360 268,612 150,099 208,941
(Loss)/profit before taxation  FRFi AT (E518) %A (46,551) 7,620 85,683 (51,555) 24717
Income tax FTisH 6,791 (2,749) (22,952) 9,266 (6,245)

(Loss)/profit for the year ERRREERE

attributable to equity EHER

shareholders of (E518),/ %A

the Company (39,760) 4871 62,731 (42,289) 18472
Total assets BEME 141,062 194,055 199,495 134,369 129,444
Total liabilities BEAE 68,611 81,798 92,070 134,650 57242
Total equity/(deficit) B/ (BB a8 72,451 112,257 107,425 (281) 72,202
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